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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

VIACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC., COMEDY )

PARTNERS, COUNTRY MUSIC TELEVISION, )

INC., PARAMOUNT PICTURES CORPORATION, )

AND BLACK ENTERTAINMENT TELEVISION, )

LLC, )

)

PLAINTIFFS, ) CASE NO.

) 07-CV-2103

VS. )

)

YOUTUBE INC., YOUTUBE, LLC AND )

GOOGLE, INC., )

)

DEFENDANTS. )

)

------------------------------------ )

)

THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION PREMIER )

LEAGUE LIMITED, BOURNE CO., ET AL., )

ON BEHALF OF THEMSELVES AND ALL )

OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED, )

)

PLAINTIFFS, ) CASE NO.

) 07-CV-3582

VS. )

)

YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC, AND )

GOOGLE, INC., )

)

DEFENDANTS. )

)

-------------------------------------

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF AMY POWELL

TAKEN ON TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2009

JOB NO. 18310
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1 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
2

3 VIACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC., COMEDY )

PARTNERS, COUNTRY MUSIC TELEVISION, )
4 INC., PARAMOUNT PICTURES CORPORATION, )

AND BLACK ENTERTAINMENT TELEVISION, )
5 LLC, )

)
6 PLAINTIFFS, ) CASE NO.

) 07-CV-2103
7 VS. )

)
8 YOUTUBE INC., YOUTUBE, LLC AND )

GOOGLE, INC., )
9 )

DEFENDANTS. )
10 )

------------------------------------ )
11 )

THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION PREMIER )
12 LEAGUE LIMITED, BOURNE CO., ET AL., )

ON BEHALF OF THEMSELVES AND ALL )
13 OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED, ) CASE NO.

) 07-CV-3582
14 PLAINTIFFS, )

)
15 VS. )

)
16 YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC, AND )

GOOGLE, INC., )
17 )

DEFENDANTS. )
18 )

-------------------------------------
19

20 Videotaped deposition of AMY HOWELL, taken on

21 behalf of the Defendants, at 350 South Grand Avenue,

22 Suite 2500, Los Angeles, California, on Tuesday,

23 December 15, 2009, at 9:25 a.m., before NIKKI ROY,

24 CSR. No. 3052.

25
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4

5 JENNER & BLOCK, LLP
BY: SUSAN J. KOHLMANN, ESQ.
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9
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1 09:41:29 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

2 09:41:31 You can answer.

3 09:41:31 THE WITNESS: For the film Transformers we

4 09:41:40 uploaded the official approved trailer to YouTube.

5 09:41:44 BY MR. VOLKMER:

6 09:41:48 Q. Did you upload any other materials besides

7 09:41:50 the official trailer to YouTube?

8 09:41:52 A. We always only upload approved materials

9 09:41:56 that have been routed through the marketing

10 09:41:59 executives, talent and filmmakers VIA approved upload

11 09:42:04 account.

12 09:42:08 MR. VOLKMER: Move to restrike the response

13 09:42:10 as nonresponsive.

14 09:42:11 Q. Did you upload any other materials besides

15 09:42:13 the official trailer to YouTube with respect to the

16 09:42:16 Transformers promotional campaign?

17 09:42:19 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

18 09:42:20 You can answer.

19 09:42:24 THE WITNESS: For Transformers 2, which is

20 09:42:26 the film I was referencing, we uploaded the official

21 09:42:31 trailer and the official approved clips from the EPK.

22 09:42:37 BY MR. VOLKMER:

23 09:42:37 Q. What about for the original Transformers

24 09:42:40 movie, did Paramount's interactive marketing

25 09:42:43 department engage in any viral marketing of that film
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1 09:42:46 using YouTube?

2 09:42:47 A. I don't recall.

3 09:43:00 Q. How long ago did Paramount upload the

4 09:43:03 Transformers 2 trailer to YouTube?

5 09:43:09 A. The Transformers 2 final trailer was earlier

6 09:43:16 this year. I don't recall specifically.

7 09:43:20 Q. So Paramount's interactive marketing

8 09:43:25 department has continued to use YouTube for

9 09:43:28 promotional purposes after this lawsuit was filed; is

10 09:43:31 that correct?

11 09:43:31 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

12 09:43:33 You can answer.

13 09:43:34 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question,

14 09:43:37 please.

15 09:43:37 BY MR. VOLKMER:

16 09:43:37 Q. Sure. Paramount's interactive marketing

17 09:43:39 department has continued to use YouTube for

18 09:43:41 promotional purposes after this lawsuit was filed; is

19 09:43:44 that correct?

20 09:43:45 A. We use YouTube as we do any other website

21 09:43:48 that we're in business with, which is to upload

22 09:43:51 approved materials for the marketing of our films.

23 09:43:55 Q. Right. And my question was, did Paramount's

24 09:43:59 interactive marketing department continue to use

25 09:43:59 YouTube for promotional purposes after this lawsuit
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1 09:44:01 was filed?

2 09:44:02 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; asked and

3 09:44:02 answered.

4 09:44:12 You can answer.

5 09:44:13 THE WITNESS: As I said, YouTube is one of

6 09:44:15 many websites that we use to market our films with

7 09:44:17 approved materials.

8 09:44:19 BY MR. VOLKMER:

9 09:44:22 Q. That doesn't respond to the question though.

10 09:44:24 The question was, after this lawsuit was filed, did

11 09:44:28 Paramount continue to use YouTube to promote its

12 09:44:31 films?

13 09:44:31 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; asked and answered

14 09:44:33 and getting argumentative.

15 09:44:35 You can answer.

16 09:44:36 THE WITNESS: We use YouTube to upload

17 09:44:41 approved marketing materials as we do any other

18 09:44:44 website that we're in business with.

19 09:44:46 BY MR. VOLKMER:

20 09:44:46 Q. And that practice of using YouTube to upload

21 09:44:49 approved marketing materials has taken place after

22 09:44:53 the filing of this lawsuit which is in March of 2007?

23 09:44:57 A. That is correct.

24 09:44:58 Q. The materials that Paramount's employees and

25 09:45:19 agents have uploaded to YouTube for promotional
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1 09:45:22 purposes, those materials are authorized to be on the

2 09:45:25 YouTube service; is that right?

3 09:45:27 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

4 09:45:33 BY MR. VOLKMER:

5 09:45:33 Q. You can answer.

6 09:45:34 A. I can only speak on behalf of my team.

7 09:45:37 Q. Sure. So the materials that were uploaded

8 09:45:41 by your team or by agents of Paramount at the

9 09:45:45 direction of your team, those materials that have

10 09:45:48 been uploaded to YouTube, they are authorized to be

11 09:45:51 on the YouTube service, correct?

12 09:45:52 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

13 09:45:55 You can answer.

14 09:45:55 THE WITNESS: To the best of my knowledge,

15 09:45:58 my team has always had the direction of only

16 09:46:02 uploading approved materials.

17 09:46:06 BY MR. VOLKMER:

18 09:46:07 Q. Would you say that everything that your team

19 09:46:09 has uploaded or has approved to be uploaded, that set

20 09:46:14 of materials are authorized?

21 09:46:15 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; vague.

22 09:46:19 You can answer.

23 09:46:20 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure I know what you

24 09:46:21 mean by "authorized."

25
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1 02:45:41 In light of all of the additional

2 02:45:43 focus on infringement on YouTube, I'm

3 02:45:45 checking with Scott to see if we are

4 02:45:46 taking down clips.

5 02:45:49 Do you know what the additional focus on

6 02:45:50 infringement that Mr. Perry references is?

7 02:45:54 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection. Are you asking

8 02:45:57 her as she sits here today?

9 02:46:00 MR. VOLKMER: Yeah, I'm asking her if she

10 02:46:02 has any understanding as to what Mr. Perry was

11 02:46:05 talking about.

12 02:46:05 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; it's not on this

13 02:46:09 document; lacks foundation.

14 02:46:10 You can answer.

15 02:46:11 THE WITNESS: I am not clear on what he's

16 02:46:14 talking about.

17 02:46:33 MR. VOLKMER: Let's mark Exhibit 20.

18 02:46:36 (Powell Exhibit 20, document bearing

19 02:46:36 Bates number VIA 00431656, marked for

20 02:46:40 identification, as of this date.)

21 02:46:40 MS. KOHLMANN: Thanks.

22 02:46:48 BY MR. VOLKMER:

23 02:47:03 Q. Exhibit 20 is an e-mail exchange produced by

24 02:47:05 Viacom in this litigation. The e-mail thread took

25 02:47:11 place on October 15th and 16th, 2006. And the first
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1 02:47:18 message in the thread you write to Tamar Teifeld and

2 02:47:23 Mickey Worsnup and you say:

3 02:47:26 Is this one of our approved

4 02:47:27 clips, question mark.

5 02:47:28 There's a YouTube URL and the subject line

6 02:47:32 is Flags of Our Fathers.

7 02:47:34 Do you know why you reached out to

8 02:47:39 Ms. Teifeld and Mr. Worsnup about the authorization

9 02:47:43 status of this clip?

10 02:47:44 A. I don't know specifically. I presume I was

11 02:47:46 in a meeting and asking them if they were in front of

12 02:47:49 a computer.

13 02:47:51 Q. And Ms. Teifeld responds:

14 02:47:55 Yes, these are clips from the

15 02:47:56 EPK.

16 02:47:57 A. Uh-huh.

17 02:47:57 Q. What is the EPK?

18 02:47:59 A. Electronic press kit.

19 02:48:00 Q. And are clips that are included in the EPK

20 02:48:06 that are uploaded to YouTube authorized to be on

21 02:48:09 YouTube?

22 02:48:09 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

23 02:48:11 THE WITNESS: On each specific film we put

24 02:48:14 together what's known as an EPK, which is a

25 02:48:18 collection of approved clips and content for any said
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1 02:48:21 film. Those are the clips that are approved for

2 02:48:23 distribution online.

3 02:48:28 BY MR. VOLKMER:

4 02:48:31 Q. So if there's an EPK clip that's appearing

5 02:48:34 on YouTube, it's authorized to be on the YouTube

6 02:48:39 service, correct?

7 02:48:39 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; misstates the

8 02:48:41 record.

9 02:48:42 THE WITNESS: Not necessarily.

10 02:48:43 BY MR. VOLKMER:

11 02:48:44 Q. Why is that?

12 02:48:45 A. Only the final approved locked color

13 02:48:50 corrected sound mixed final version of the EPK clips

14 02:48:53 are approved for distribution across YouTube and

15 02:48:59 other websites.

16 02:49:00 Q. But all the final versions meeting all the

17 02:49:10 criteria you just listed, those EPK clips are

18 02:49:13 authorized to be on the YouTube service, correct?

19 02:49:15 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

20 02:49:16 THE WITNESS: Presumably, yes.

21 02:49:21 BY MR. VOLKMER:

22 02:49:28 Q. This is the same YouTube URL that's

23 02:49:32 referenced in the previous exhibit, Exhibit 19. Do

24 02:49:38 you know if you told Mr. Perry whether or not this

25 02:49:43 clip was authorized to be on YouTube?
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1 02:49:45 A. I don't recall.

2 02:50:08 Q. The clip that's referenced in the e-mail on

3 02:50:11 Exhibit 20, that's a clip that was authorized to be

4 02:50:14 on YouTube, correct?

5 02:50:15 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

6 02:50:18 THE WITNESS: I would have to review the

7 02:50:19 clip to tell you.

8 02:50:20 BY MR. VOLKMER:

9 02:50:24 Q. Ms. Teifeld says, where you wrote to

10 02:50:27 Ms. Teifeld "Is this one of our approved clips?" And

11 02:50:30 she wrote back "Yes, these clips are from the EPK."

12 02:50:33 Based on this e-mail, isn't the most logical

13 02:50:40 inference that the clip being referenced here is one

14 02:50:43 that was approved by Paramount to appear on YouTube?

15 02:50:45 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

16 02:50:47 THE WITNESS: Based on Tamar's e-mail she's

17 02:50:51 saying, yes, these clips are from the EPK, and hence

18 02:50:53 we would assume that, yes, they are approved clips.

19 02:50:57 BY MR. VOLKMER:

20 02:50:57 Q. And you had no reason to question

21 02:51:00 Ms. Teifeld's assessment, correct?

22 02:51:02 A. Correct.

23 02:51:13 Q. You did not ask that this clip be removed

24 02:51:16 from the YouTube service, did you?

25 02:51:18 A. I don't recall.
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1 02:51:19 Q. Based on this e-mail in which Ms. Teifeld

2 02:51:24 says that they are approved clips that came from the

3 02:51:29 EPK, do you think that you asked anyone that these --

4 02:51:33 that this clip be removed?

5 02:51:34 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

6 02:51:39 THE WITNESS: I do not believe I would have

7 02:51:41 requested it to be removed, with the understanding it

8 02:51:43 was an approved clip from the EPK.

9 02:52:22 MR. VOLKMER: Let's mark Exhibit 21.

10 02:52:23 (Powell Exhibit 21 VIA11786487,

11 02:52:23 document bearing Bates number VIA11786487,

12 02:52:40 marked for identification, as of this date.)

13 02:52:40 BY MR. VOLKMER:

14 02:52:56 Q. This is an e-mail exchange from May 8th and

15 02:52:58 9th, 2007 produced by Viacom in this litigation.

16 02:53:04 In the first message in this thread Kristina

17 02:53:08 Tipton asked whether Paramount should leave up a

18 02:53:13 Transformers clip that appeared on the Ellen

19 02:53:17 Degeneres show; is that right?

20 02:53:18 A. Yes.

21 02:53:18 Q. And it says -- the message from Ms. Tipton

22 02:53:23 says:

23 02:53:24 Publicity wouldn't let us post

24 02:53:26 the clip officially online.

25 02:53:28 Why wouldn't publicity allow Paramount to
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1 04:15:42 A. That is correct.

2 04:15:43 Q. And so it didn't matter who the user was,

3 04:15:46 right?

4 04:15:47 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

5 04:15:48 You can answer.

6 04:15:48 THE WITNESS: In this instance this is not

7 04:15:50 film content.

8 04:15:52 BY MR. VOLKMER:

9 04:15:55 Q. This is a promotional clip that was produced

10 04:15:59 by Paramount for the movie Transformers, right?

11 04:16:03 A. No that is not correct.

12 04:16:05 Q. What is incorrect about that statement?

13 04:16:06 A. It is not a clip. It's original content

14 04:16:11 that was produced by a third party.

15 04:16:13 Q. Which third party produced this clip?

16 04:16:17 A. A -- I don't remember the name of the

17 04:16:20 company but the gentleman's name was Jules.

18 04:16:23 Q. Acting at Paramount's direction?

19 04:16:27 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

20 04:16:29 You can answer.

21 04:16:29 THE WITNESS: Yes.

22 04:16:29 BY MR. VOLKMER:

23 04:16:32 Q. Presumably Paramount owned the video clip

24 04:16:36 that's represented here on Exhibit 28?

25 04:16:38 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.
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1 04:16:41 THE WITNESS: I don't know that I can answer

2 04:16:42 that. I believe Jules created it and owned it.

3 04:16:45 BY MR. VOLKMER:

4 04:17:03 Q. Why do you believe that Jules owned it?

5 04:17:06 A. To the best of my recollection, that was the

6 04:17:09 agreement.

7 04:17:11 Q. There was an agreement that a third party

8 04:17:18 would create marketing materials for Paramount and

9 04:17:24 retain an ownership interest in those materials?

10 04:17:27 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

11 04:17:29 You can answer.

12 04:17:29 THE WITNESS: To the best of my knowledge,

13 04:17:30 in this unique circumstance, given the technology

14 04:17:33 involved, yes, that was the case.

15 04:17:34 BY MR. VOLKMER:

16 04:17:57 Q. You were okay with this video remaining on

17 04:18:00 the YouTube service even though it contained in its

18 04:18:03 title the name of a Paramount movie; is that right?

19 04:18:06 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

20 04:18:08 You can answer.

21 04:18:08 THE WITNESS: Transformers is the name of

22 04:18:18 our movie, but it's also the name of toys that have

23 04:18:23 been created and an animated feature that's been in

24 04:18:27 the marketplace for a long time and many other

25 04:18:31 things.
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1 04:18:31 BY MR. VOLKMER:

2 04:18:57 Q. So Paramount's not claiming any proprietary

3 04:19:00 interest in the phrase "Transformers," right?

4 04:19:05 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection; calls for a legal

5 04:19:06 conclusion.

6 04:19:07 You can answer.

7 04:19:07 THE WITNESS: That's a question I would ask

8 04:19:09 our legal team.

9 04:19:10 BY MR. VOLKMER:

10 04:19:18 Q. You didn't think though that it was

11 04:19:21 inappropriate for this user to post a video to

12 04:19:25 YouTube that had a title that contained the name of

13 04:19:27 one of Paramount's movies?

14 04:19:31 A. Upon review of the content, I did not have a

15 04:19:34 problem with it being on YouTube.

16 04:20:23 MR. VOLKMER: Mark Exhibit 30.

17 04:20:24 (Powell Exhibit 30, document bearing

18 04:20:24 Bates number BAYTSP 003733247, marked for

19 04:20:36 identification, as of this date.)

20 04:20:36 MS. KOHLMANN: Thanks.

21 04:20:45 BY MR. VOLKMER:

22 04:20:53 Q. Exhibit 30 is an e-mail exchange that BayTSP

23 04:20:56 produced in litigation. It's from July 9, 2007.

24 04:21:02 The last message on the page, Warren Kim

25 04:21:05 writes to Al Perry and to Amy Powell that if the
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION PREMIER )
LEAGUE LIMITED and BOURNE CO., )
et al., on behalf of themselves )
and all others similarly situated,)
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Plaintiffs, )
)

-vs- )NO. 07-CV-2103
)

YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC and )
GOOGLE, INC., )

)
Defendants. )

__________________________________)
VIACOM INTERNATIONAL INC., et al.,)
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Plaintiffs, )
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-vs- )NO. 07-CV-3582
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YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC and )
GOOGLE, INC., )

)
Defendants. )

__________________________________)

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF CHRISTOPHER MAXCY
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA
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JOB NO. 18549
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1

2 JANUARY 14, 2010

3 VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF CHRISTOPHER MAXCY,

4 held at the offices of WILSON, SONSINI,

5 GOODRICH & ROSATI, One Market Plaza, Spear

6 Street Tower, Suite 3300, San Francisco,

7 California, pursuant to notice, before DIANE S.

8 MARTIN, CSR License No. 6464.

9

10

11
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
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1 A P P E A R A N C E S:

2

3 FOR THE PLAINTIFFS VIACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC.:

4 JENNER & BLOCK, LLP
BY: SCOTT B. WILKENS, ESQ.

5 1099 New York Avenue, NW
Suite 900

6 Washington, D.C. 20001
(202) 639-6000

7 swilkens@jenner.com

8

9

10 FOR THE CLASS PLAINTIFFS:

11 BERNSTEIN, LITOWITZ, BERGER & GROSSMAN
BY: BENJAMIN GALDSTON, ESQ.

12 12481 High Bluff Drive
Suite 300

13 San Diego, California 92130-3582
(858) 720-3188

14 beng@blbglaw.com

15

16

17 FOR THE CLASS PLAINTIFFS:

18 BERNSTEIN, LITOWITZ, BERGER & GROSSMAN
BY: LAUREN A. McMILLEN, ESQ.

19 1285 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10019

20 (212) 554-1593
laurenm@blbglaw.com

21

22

23

24

25
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1 FOR THE DEFENDANTS YOUTUBE, INC., AND GOOGLE, INC.:

2 WILSON, SONSINI, GOODRICH & ROSATI
BY: DAVID H. KRAMER, ESQ.

3 650 Page Mill Road
Palo Alto, California 94304

4 (650) 493-9300
dkramer@wsgr.com

5

6

GOOGLE
7 BY: ADAM L. BAREA, ESQ.

1600 Amphitheatre Parkway
8 Mountain View, California 94043

(650) 214-4879
9 adambarea@google.com

10

11

12 The Videographer: Stuart Pettigrew

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 11:04:47 you have a policy about applying some set of services

2 11:04:49 or some set of tools to one group and not another,

3 11:04:52 that's what he's here to testify about, but asking him

4 11:04:54 to give you a narrative as to what the tools were, he's

5 11:04:57 not qualified to do that. He's not here, he's not

6 11:05:00 prepared to do that. He's not being presented to do

7 11:05:05 that, and it's not fair to ask him that, when you've

8 11:05:06 already had this witness in his individual capacity for

9 11:05:06 seven hours.

10 11:05:06 MR. WILKENS: Well, I don't agree with that.

11 11:05:09 He's obviously met with Mr. Eun to talk about these

12 11:05:10 identification technologies in preparation for today's

13 11:05:11 deposition.

14 11:05:11 MR. KRAMER: On the question of policies. On

15 11:05:13 the question of policies, Scott.

16 11:05:14 BY MR. WILKENS:

17 11:05:14 Q All right. Did you discuss with Mr. Eun any

18 11:05:18 specific content identification technologies?

19 11:05:21 A No.

20 11:05:21 Q Did you discuss audio fingerprinting with

21 11:05:23 Mr. Eun?

22 11:05:25 A We discussed -- excuse me.

23 11:05:28 We discussed policies as they related to the

24 11:05:31 technologies. Mr. Eun is not a technologist, nor am

25 11:05:34 I. We did not discuss the details of the system.
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1 11:05:41 Q What policies with respect to content ID

2 11:05:45 technologies did you discuss with Mr. Eun?

3 11:05:47 A I'm sorry, can you repeat that?

4 11:05:49 Q Yes, what policies with respect to YouTube's

5 11:05:52 content identification technologies did you discuss

6 11:05:55 with Mr. Eun?

7 11:05:55 A We discussed Google and YouTube's policies as

8 11:06:02 they pertain to making our content technologies

9 11:06:09 available to both partners and non-partners alike.

10 11:06:21 More specifically, we discussed the fact that Google's

11 11:06:26 policy and practice was to make these tools available

12 11:06:31 to any copyright owner.

13 11:06:36 Q What time period -- during what time period

14 11:06:40 did YouTube make its content identification

15 11:06:45 technologies available to partners -- content partners

16 11:06:52 and non-content partners alike?

17 11:06:54 MR. KRAMER: The question is beyond the scope.

18 11:07:00 THE WITNESS: Can you be more specific?

19 11:07:01 BY MR. WILKENS:

20 11:07:01 Q Yes. Okay, in 2006 did YouTube make its

21 11:07:07 content identification technologies available to

22 11:07:10 content partners and non-content partners on the same

23 11:07:16 basis?

24 11:07:16 A Can you be more specific about technologies?

25 11:07:20 Q What technologies did you discuss with Mr. Eun
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1 11:07:23 that were subject to the policies that you discussed

2 11:07:26 with him?

3 11:07:28 A We discussed the broad suite of technologies.

4 11:07:32 We didn't, as I mentioned, get into granular details

5 11:07:38 about the system.

6 11:07:41 Q Okay. Can you identify any tech -- any

7 11:07:48 content identification technology that YouTube made

8 11:07:52 available to content partners and non-content partners

9 11:07:58 on an equal basis in 2006?

10 11:08:00 MR. KRAMER: Objection. It's beyond the

11 11:08:02 scope.

12 11:08:05 You can answer in your individual capacity.

13 11:08:08 MR. WILKENS: I don't agree with that.

14 11:08:08 MR. KRAMER: Well, he's not answering it on

15 11:08:11 behalf of the company, Scott, because that's beyond the

16 11:08:13 scope of the notice.

17 11:08:15 MR. WILKENS: How is it beyond the scope of

18 11:08:16 the notice?

19 11:08:16 MR. KRAMER: Scott, whether somebody did or

20 11:08:19 didn't do something is different than what the

21 11:08:21 company's policies were. So the question is you asked

22 11:08:26 at a policy level. If you wanted a technologist to

23 11:08:28 testify as to in an individual case what happened, we

24 11:08:33 would have brought somebody different, but you asked

25 11:08:35 about a policy.
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1 11:08:35 MR. WILKENS: And I'm asking him at a policy

2 11:08:38 level, meaning not individual content owner by content

3 11:08:42 owner.

4 11:08:42 MR. KRAMER: Okay.

5 11:08:43 BY MR. WILKENS:

6 11:08:43 Q What technologies did YouTube make available

7 11:08:47 to content partners and non-content partners on the

8 11:08:50 same basis in 2006?

9 11:08:55 A I think from a policy standpoint our policy

10 11:09:00 was to make our tools available to everybody.

11 11:09:05 Is that the question you're asking?

12 11:09:09 Q When was that policy put in place?

13 11:09:15 A That policy has been in place for as long as I

14 11:09:19 can recall, and I've been at YouTube since December of

15 11:09:23 2005.

16 11:09:25 Q So it's your testimony that any technology

17 11:09:31 that YouTube developed at any point in time was -- the

18 11:09:35 policy was to provide that to every content owner that

19 11:09:40 used the YouTube service on the same basis?

20 11:09:42 MR. KRAMER: Objection. The term "same basis"

21 11:09:44 is vague.

22 11:09:46 You can answer.

23 11:09:47 THE WITNESS: What I'm saying is that our

24 11:09:50 policy was to provide these tools broadly to copyright

25 11:09:55 owners.
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1 11:09:57 BY MR. WILKENS:

2 11:09:57 Q And can you -- can you specifically identify

3 11:09:58 the tools that the policy applied to?

4 11:10:04 MR. KRAMER: Objection. Beyond the scope.

5 11:10:07 THE WITNESS: I wasn't -- I did not prepare

6 11:10:12 today to talk in detail about our content

7 11:10:16 identification system. I prepared today to talk about

8 11:10:22 the policies which we -- which we applied to access to

9 11:10:28 that system, and I think as I've answered, our policies

10 11:10:32 and I think our practices were to make that available

11 11:10:37 to all content owners, regardless of whether they were

12 11:10:40 a partner or a non-partner.

13 11:10:43 BY MR. WILKENS:

14 11:10:43 Q So was it the company's policy to make audio

15 11:10:48 fingerprinting available to all content owners

16 11:10:52 regardless of whether they were a content partner in

17 11:10:55 2006?

18 11:10:56 MR. KRAMER: The question lacks foundation.

19 11:10:57 There was no audio fingerprinting technology in 2006.

20 11:11:01 THE WITNESS: Can you be more specific?

21 11:11:06 BY MR. WILKENS:

22 11:11:06 Q YouTube entered into agreements with content

23 11:11:09 partners in 2006 that provided for the provision of

24 11:11:16 audio fingerprinting technology; correct?

25 11:11:20 A That is correct.
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1 11:11:21 Q Okay. And did YouTube enter into -- did

2 11:11:33 YouTube agree to provide audio fingerprinting

3 11:11:33 technology to any content owners with whom it didn't

4 11:11:36 enter into a content partnership agreement in 2006?

5 11:11:41 MR. KRAMER: Agreed to provide is vague.

6 11:11:45 Calls for speculation, and it's beyond the scope.

7 11:11:46 THE WITNESS: I don't recall exact dates, but

8 11:11:57 I can tell you that we did provide these technologies

9 11:12:03 to a number of non-partners and offered to provide --

10 11:12:08 well, let's say we offered to provide these

11 11:12:10 technologies to a number of non-partners in either late

12 11:12:16 2006 or in early 2007, including Viacom, including

13 11:12:22 Globo, including TF1.

14 11:12:25 BY MR. WILKENS:

15 11:12:25 Q And did you -- did you offer to provide those

16 11:12:28 technologies outside of the context of a content

17 11:12:30 licensing deal?

18 11:12:32 A Yes.

19 11:12:33 Q And who specifically offered to provide those

20 11:12:37 technologies to Viacom and the other content owners you

21 11:12:42 mentioned?

22 11:12:42 MR. KRAMER: The question is beyond the scope

23 11:12:44 of the deposition; calls for his individual testimony

24 11:12:47 and knowledge; may call for speculation; may lack

25 11:12:50 foundation.
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1 11:12:51 You can answer if you can answer.

2 11:12:52 MR. WILKENS: Well, you let him testify about

3 11:12:55 that there were such offers made as a 30(b)(6)

4 11:12:59 witness. It's totally appropriate to continue as a

5 11:13:05 30(b)(6) witness and answer information -- answer

6 11:13:05 questions about the circumstances in which those offers

7 11:13:08 were made.

8 11:13:08 MR. KRAMER: Scott, I didn't instruct him not

9 11:13:10 to answer. I just objected that it's beyond the scope;

10 11:13:12 that it calls for speculation, and it lacks foundation.

11 11:13:14 He can answer the question.

12 11:13:16 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question

13 11:13:18 now?

14 11:13:18 BY MR. WILKENS:

15 11:13:18 Q Yes. Okay. Turning first to Viacom, when was

16 11:13:26 Viacom offered audio fingerprinting regardless of

17 11:13:31 whether Viacom would enter into a licensing deal with

18 11:13:35 YouTube?

19 11:13:35 MR. KRAMER: Same objections; beyond the

20 11:13:37 scope.

21 11:13:39 THE WITNESS: I can't recall the exact date in

22 11:13:42 which we first discussed audio identification

23 11:13:46 technologies with Viacom. We obviously, and you have

24 11:13:50 this in your documentation, began discussions with

25 11:13:54 Viacom in 2006.
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1 13:03:15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This begins Video Disc

2 13:03:17 Number 2 of the January 14th, 2010 deposition of

3 13:03:21 Christopher Maxcy. We're on the record at 1:02.

4 13:03:25 BY MR. WILKENS:

5 13:03:25 Q Hi, Mr. Maxcy.

6 13:03:28 A Hi.

7 13:03:28 Q You understand you're still under oath?

8 13:03:34 A Yes.

9 13:03:34 Q I just have a few more questions before I turn

10 13:03:34 things over to the class plaintiffs.

11 13:03:34 I want to return to the offer you testified

12 13:03:40 about earlier to Mr. Cahan to provide Viacom with audio

13 13:03:44 fingerprinting technology.

14 13:03:46 When you communicated that offer to Mr. Cahan,

15 13:03:54 did you offer access to the -- what's referred to as

16 13:03:56 the claim-your-content tool?

17 13:03:58 MR. KRAMER: Objection. Beyond the scope. I

18 13:04:00 thought we were past this.

19 13:04:01 You can answer the questions in your

20 13:04:04 individual capacity.

21 13:04:05 THE WITNESS: Sure. So Viacom -- to start

22 13:04:18 with Mr. Cahan was offered access to our

23 13:04:23 claim-your-content tool a number of times in 2006 as

24 13:04:28 mentioned, as well as 2007, in fact -- and then so

25 13:04:30 that's one thing.
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1 13:04:31 So the offer specifically for audio

2 13:04:36 fingerprinting was what I was describing earlier, which

3 13:04:41 was in February, and that was part of the

4 13:04:46 claim-your-content system. It was the feature that was

5 13:04:48 being developed. As I mentioned, we were saying that,

6 13:04:51 you know, we used the terminology alpha, meaning that

7 13:04:54 the product was in early development, and we were

8 13:04:57 planning on launching that product with a handful of

9 13:05:00 partners that were helping us develop it, test it with

10 13:05:05 the policy and goal to roll that out broadly to all

11 13:05:09 content owners.

12 13:05:12 I also recall introducing Mr. Cahan to the

13 13:05:18 president or the CEO of Audible Magic in late 2006, I

14 13:05:23 believe it was somewhere in late 2006, early 2007 so

15 13:05:28 that Mr. Cahan could discuss with Audible Magic how to

16 13:05:35 get reference material into Audible's systems so that

17 13:05:37 then when we were ready to start utilizing this audio

18 13:05:42 fingerprinting technology, we would be prepared to do

19 13:05:45 that.

20 13:05:45 BY MR. WILKENS:

21 13:05:45 Q Okay. Well, focusing on the February 2007

22 13:05:50 period, I think when you said after negotiations had

23 13:05:53 broken down. Am I correct then that the offer for

24 13:06:01 Audible Magic or audio fingerprinting at that time was

25 13:06:03 as part of the claim-your-content tool?
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1 13:06:06 MR. KRAMER: Objection. Beyond the scope;

2 13:06:08 it's asked and answered.

3 13:06:10 THE WITNESS: I think I've answered that

4 13:06:12 already.

5 13:06:12 BY MR. WILKENS:

6 13:06:12 Q And just for clarification is that correct,

7 13:06:16 that it was in February of '07 after negotiations had

8 13:06:20 broken down, was it part of a claim-your-content tool

9 13:06:23 that audio fingerprinting was offered?

10 13:06:26 MR. KRAMER: Objection. Beyond the scope;

11 13:06:29 asked and answered, and the question is vague.

12 13:06:32 THE WITNESS: As I think I've already answered

13 13:06:34 this, that the claim-your-content tool was

14 13:06:39 incorporating audio fingerprinting, and that was part

15 13:06:44 of the offer that we made to Mr. Cahan after the

16 13:06:51 negotiations broke down.

17 13:06:54 MR. WILKENS: Okay. I have -- I'll just note

18 13:06:57 for the record for now I don't have any further

19 13:06:59 questions, pending whether Mr. Kramer has redirect, and

20 13:07:03 I obviously note for the record the various

21 13:07:06 instructions not to answer and the disagreement that we

22 13:07:08 have about the scope of this deposition.

23 13:07:11 But with that I'll turn things over to the

24 13:07:13 class plaintiffs.

25 13:07:15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is 1:06. Off the
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1 13:08:35 current form. Is there something in particular about

2 13:08:38 the question that --

3 13:08:39 A I think it's fairly absolute. You're saying

4 13:08:42 any features. I'm just trying to figure out how to

5 13:08:46 help answer that question for your benefit.

6 13:08:50 Is there anything you want me to cover

7 13:08:53 specifically?

8 13:08:53 Q Well, sir, I don't know all of the features

9 13:08:56 that YouTube has offered to content partners or

10 13:08:59 non-content partners between 2006 and the present, so I

11 13:09:02 need to start with this general question, whether there

12 13:09:05 are any features other than the testimony you provided

13 13:09:13 thus far that YouTube provided to content partners that

14 13:09:14 it did not provide to non-content partners as a matter

15 13:09:17 of policy?

16 13:09:19 A I believe my testimony this morning discussed

17 13:09:27 monetization, support, and promotional capabilities.

18 13:09:36 To my knowledge I don't believe there's

19 13:09:42 anything outside of those three categories that we

20 13:09:46 would -- that we have provided, not that I recall. I

21 13:09:50 mean obviously I do a lot of things at YouTube so --

22 13:09:54 Q Sure. Well, between 2006 and the present has

23 13:10:00 YouTube as a matter of policy made any content

24 13:10:02 verification technologies or tools available to content

25 13:10:05 partners that it has not made available to non-content
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1 13:10:09 partners?

2 13:10:10 MR. KRAMER: Objection to the question as

3 13:10:11 vague.

4 13:10:15 THE WITNESS: I'm thinking.

5 13:10:30 The policies that we've had in place, as I

6 13:10:33 said, since early on were to provide our content

7 13:10:38 identification technologies to any copyright holder. I

8 13:10:44 also testified to the fact that in 2006 and early 2007

9 13:10:50 we were developing audio fingerprinting technologies

10 13:10:56 using Audible Magic as our partner, but that product

11 13:11:02 took some time to roll out, and we were testing that

12 13:11:06 product with a handful of partners at the time,

13 13:11:10 including Warner Music, who literally were helping us

14 13:11:12 architect that system.

15 13:11:17 We then rolled that out when the system was

16 13:11:19 viable to partners and non-partners alike.

17 13:11:24 BY MR. GALDSTON:

18 13:11:24 Q Okay. So is it fair to say then that between

19 13:11:28 2006 and the present, that to the extent YouTube has

20 13:11:30 had technologies or tools that it considers generally

21 13:11:33 viable, it has made those tools and technologies

22 13:11:38 equally available to partners as to non-partners?

23 13:11:41 MR. KRAMER: Hang on. Can I have that one

24 13:11:42 back, please?

25 13:11:43 (Record read by the court reporter as follows:
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1 13:11:43 "Q: So is it fair to say then that between

2 13:11:43 2006 and the present, that to the extent

3 13:11:43 YouTube has had technologies or tools that it

4 13:11:43 considers generally viable, it has made those

5 13:11:43 tools and technologies equally available to

6 13:11:43 partners as to non-partners?")

7 13:12:01 MR. KRAMER: So that question is beyond the

8 13:12:03 scope; it calls for speculation.

9 13:12:07 You can answer the question if you can answer

10 13:12:09 the question.

11 13:12:10 THE WITNESS: So I just -- I just want to make

12 13:12:12 sure I'm clear on which technologies and which tools

13 13:12:15 you're referring to.

14 13:12:17 BY MR. GALDSTON:

15 13:12:17 Q Sure. Let's see if we can be more precise,

16 13:12:21 and I do want to clarify that I'm speaking as a matter

17 13:12:23 of policy, and I want to know whether it's a fair

18 13:12:28 statement that between 2006 to the present to the

19 13:12:32 extent YouTube has had content verification

20 13:12:37 technologies that it deems viable, that as a matter of

21 13:12:40 policy YouTube has made those same technologies equally

22 13:12:44 available to partners as it has to non-content

23 13:12:47 partners?

24 13:12:47 MR. KRAMER: I'll object to the form of the

25 13:12:48 question.
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1 13:12:57 THE WITNESS: So it is our general policy, as

2 13:13:00 I've said before, that the tools be available to all

3 13:13:08 copyright holders. Obviously these tools and

4 13:13:09 technologies take time to develop, test and roll out so

5 13:13:15 I'm sure there's been situations as we're testing and

6 13:13:20 rolling out these tools where we're working with

7 13:13:22 partners where we have a formal relationship and

8 13:13:25 they're helping us to build the system, but again, once

9 13:13:30 the system works, we roll it out to everybody.

10 13:13:35 BY MR. GALDSTON:

11 13:13:35 Q Equally?

12 13:13:36 A To my knowledge I believe that is -- that is

13 13:13:40 correct.

14 13:13:41 Q Okay. And when you say it's "our general

15 13:13:43 policy," between 2006 and the present was that general

16 13:13:47 policy memorialized anywhere at YouTube?

17 13:13:50 MR. KRAMER: Asked and answered, I think. And

18 13:13:52 it's beyond the scope, I think, but go ahead.

19 13:13:55 BY MR. GALDSTON:

20 13:13:55 Q Other than the e-mails that you've testified

21 13:13:57 about.

22 13:13:57 A Well, I -- I can tell you that in early 2007

23 13:14:05 there was obviously a lot of conversation back and

24 13:14:12 forth, and late 2006 as well, in 2006, about how we

25 13:14:16 would roll these tools out, and there were some I think
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1 13:14:21 various opinions on whether it would be more

2 13:14:23 appropriate and for good reasons to utilize these tools

3 13:14:28 just for partners, reasons for meaning how would you

4 13:14:33 know who this company is, what kind of recourse would

5 13:14:37 you have if the company used these very powerful tools

6 13:14:41 inappropriately?

7 13:14:48 Having said that, there is a lot of debate

8 13:14:48 that occurs at Google. It's the way our culture

9 13:14:49 works. People debate things back and forth.

10 13:14:52 But having said all that, the reality is that

11 13:14:55 the policy was to have these tools available to all

12 13:14:59 partners, and, in fact, I think -- I recall a more

13 13:15:07 specific example of this that may help you in which

14 13:15:14 Eric Schmidt in early 2007 -- the reason why -- I'll

15 13:15:18 tell you why I recall this.

16 13:15:20 In early 2007 Eric Schmidt actually made a

17 13:15:22 public statement about this saying that we would be

18 13:15:26 rolling out audio identification technologies as part

19 13:15:30 of our portfolio of copyright identification tools, and

20 13:15:35 that these technologies were hard to develop so we were

21 13:15:39 working -- working hard to get that to roll out, and

22 13:15:43 that the tools would be available to everybody,

23 13:15:46 partners and non-partners, and the reason why I recall

24 13:15:50 that is because I subsequently got a somewhat nervous

25 13:15:54 or panicked phone call from Vance, and I can never
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2 10:09:23 A. That is correct. So, you know, we -- it's

3 10:09:26 really logically only three policies that make sense.

4 10:09:29 And, you know, those are the three -- monetize, track or

5 10:09:34 block.

6 10:09:35 Q. And you testified that these were fingerprints

7 10:09:38 where the reference work was supplied to YouTube. By

8 10:09:40 whom? Who would supply works to YouTube as reference

9 10:09:47 files for inclusion in the YTB database?

10 10:09:50 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form. It's

11 10:09:51 compound. It's vague as to time.

12 10:09:57 THE WITNESS: Typically, the provision of

13 10:10:04 these files would come from the rights holder of -- of

14 10:10:06 record.

15 10:10:07 BY MR. PLATZER:

16 10:10:11 Q. Could any rights holder come to YouTube and

17 10:10:15 say, "I want to add my content into the YTB database"

18 10:10:19 and block it?

19 10:10:20 A. Yes.

20 10:10:25 Q. Were there any rights holders --

21 10:10:28 A. And -- and I might add that we -- we work with

22 10:10:34 about 1200 companies at this point that do precisely

23 10:10:37 that.

24 10:10:39 Q. And so are there rights holders who have all

25 10:10:44 of their content in the YTB database set to block?
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2 10:10:51 A. There are.

3 10:10:52 Q. When did YouTube first begin populating and

4 10:10:56 querying of YTB database?

5 10:11:02 A. It would have been in the February-March time

6 10:11:06 frame of 2007.

7 10:11:07 Q. At that time were there any content owners who

8 10:11:11 had placed content into the YTB database with pol- --

9 10:11:17 with all policies set to block?

10 10:11:27 A. That -- that's a very detailed question. I --

11 10:11:31 I believe that there were, but you know, it -- I -- I'm

12 10:11:37 not precisely sure of whether that would be February,

13 10:11:40 March, or April.

14 10:11:51 Q. Do you have an understanding of the term

15 10:11:52 "block only partner"?

16 10:11:54 A. What is your understanding of "block only

17 10:11:56 partner," to make sure we're on the same page?

18 10:12:00 Q. Well, let's define that as a -- a company that

19 10:12:03 supplies reference content to YouTube for -- solely for

20 10:12:08 the purposes of blocking any matches.

21 10:12:13 A. Yes, I think -- that's a type of partnership

22 10:12:17 which we've -- which we've supported throughout my

23 10:12:21 tenure at YouTube.

24 10:12:23 Q. What was the first block only partnership that

25 10:12:26 YouTube entered?
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2 10:12:29 A. I don't recall which was the first.

3 10:12:31 Q. Okay. Do you remember when YouTube --

4 10:12:33 A. It date -- it predated my time at YouTube.

5 10:12:37 And -- and I might add that, the -- that YouTube has

6 10:12:41 offered a long list of copyright tools to -- to rights

7 10:12:48 holders, and, you know, so you should already go -- if

8 10:12:55 you go back to, say, when we started to offer the

9 10:12:58 content verification program in early '06, that -- you

10 10:13:03 know, you could construe that as being partnerships with

11 10:13:07 block only partners that availed themselves of that

12 10:13:10 service.

13 10:13:10 And by the time I started in January of '07,

14 10:13:14 there were thousands of entities which had signed the

15 10:13:18 content verification program agreement to have access to

16 10:13:22 that tool set.

17 10:13:23 Q. Well, let's pose the question more narrowly,

18 10:13:27 then. Are there any block only partners for whom

19 10:13:34 YouTube uses the YTB database to block uploads of

20 10:13:39 content that matches reference files they supplied to

21 10:13:46 YouTube?

22 10:13:47 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form. Vague as to

23 10:13:48 time.

24 10:13:48 THE WITNESS: The -- the YTB Audible Magic

25 10:13:52 partition in the context of the Audible Magic
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2 10:13:56 implementation, did include a number of what we have

3 10:14:03 defined as block only partners.

4 10:14:05 BY MR. PLATZER:

5 10:14:08 Q. What was the first point in time at which the

6 10:14:11 YTB partition included a block only partner?

7 10:14:18 A. Right, and -- and do you -- you asked me that

8 10:14:20 before. And so I don't recall the precise date, but it

9 10:14:24 would have been somewhere between February and April of

10 10:14:27 2007.

11 10:14:30 Q. Who was the block only partner --

12 10:14:33 A. I --

13 10:14:34 Q. -- that -- that first began using the YTB

14 10:14:37 partition solely for the purpose of blocking?

15 10:14:39 A. I don't recall which partner was first.

16 10:14:44 Q. Do you recall the identities of any block only

17 10:14:48 partners who used the YTB database in the first half of

18 10:14:52 2007?

19 10:14:54 A. So my reading of the -- of the questions said

20 10:14:58 that it -- that I wouldn't -- that we would be talking

21 10:15:04 in general categories and not to specific content

22 10:15:07 owners. So I did not familiarize myself with the

23 10:15:10 specifics.

24 10:15:12 If -- Brian, if you counsel me to find that

25 10:15:16 information out, I would be -- I would be happy to look
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2 10:15:19 it up during a break, and -- and -- and tell you. But

3 10:15:24 that was -- that was not my reading of the -- the scope

4 10:15:28 of what we were doing today, so I did not familiarize

5 10:15:31 myself with that level of detail.

6 10:15:34 MR. WILLEN: Yeah, and I think that the

7 10:15:36 category of question is pretty clear that it says we do

8 10:15:39 not request information of specific content or content

9 10:15:42 owners, so, on its face this was not something that

10 10:15:45 would be called for by Topic 4(b).

11 10:15:49 THE WITNESS: So when I researched it, I

12 10:15:51 asked, "Did this happen?" The answer was "Yes," and I

13 10:15:56 stopped there. I didn't ask with which companies.

14 10:15:59 BY MR. PLATZER:

15 10:16:00 Q. Well, for which categories of companies did

16 10:16:03 this happen?

17 10:16:05 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

18 10:16:07 THE WITNESS: What -- what -- what do you mean

19 10:16:09 by "category"?

20 10:16:10 BY MR. PLATZER:

21 10:16:10 Q. Well, were there any criteria that a content

22 10:16:13 owner needed to satisfy in order to use the YTB database

23 10:16:18 for blocking purposes only?

24 10:16:20 MR. WILLEN: So I would also add, in addition

25 10:16:22 to what I said about this topic not focusing on specific
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2 10:21:01 only.

3 10:21:02 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the term "granted

4 10:21:04 access." Vague.

5 10:21:10 THE WITNESS: I -- yeah, I think granted

6 10:21:13 access is -- is -- is not the right -- or is not a

7 10:21:22 formulation that I would use.

8 10:21:25 We were in dialogue with Viacom about the

9 10:21:27 options available to -- to meet their needs. And they

10 10:21:33 made certain decisions about how they wanted to manage

11 10:21:39 their relationship with YouTube.

12 10:21:40 BY MR. PLATZER:

13 10:21:41 Q. Well, but did YouTube offer Viacom the option

14 10:21:44 of supplying reference content to YouTube for purposes

15 10:21:49 of -- of inclusion in the YTB partition of the Audible

16 10:21:52 Magic database for blocking purposes only?

17 10:21:55 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

18 10:21:58 THE WITNESS: I -- I don't know if it was

19 10:22:00 described to -- to Viacom in those terms. I believe

20 10:22:08 that Viacom was offered access to our tools, and that --

21 10:22:18 that they made whatever decisions they made.

22 10:22:20 BY MR. PLATZER:

23 10:22:20 Q. Well, when you say "offered access to our

24 10:22:23 tools," were they specifically offered access to the

25 10:22:26 tool of using the YTB database partition to block?
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2 10:22:36 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form.

3 10:22:38 THE WITNESS: I -- I -- I can't speak to the

4 10:22:40 specifics of, did it get down to the level of, Viacom,

5 10:22:46 would you like to use our YTB Audible Magic partition?

6 10:22:51 Certainly there was a dialogue with Viacom about the --

7 10:22:58 the best methods to meet their needs, and, the

8 10:23:07 conversations that I had with -- with -- with Viacom

9 10:23:10 were more focused on our development of a video

10 10:23:15 fingerprinting service, and -- and -- and -- but

11 10:23:19 certainly the -- I had many conversations with people

12 10:23:24 like Alan Bell and Mr. Simon -- I can't remember his --

13 10:23:30 Joe Simon, the CIO of -- of Viacom, where the -- you

14 10:23:38 know, there was an open dialogue about -- about

15 10:23:41 technical solutions here.

16 10:23:45 Their primary focus and interest area was

17 10:23:50 around the development of video fingerprinting, but that

18 10:23:55 was -- you know, there was an open line to them about

19 10:23:58 all of our systems, and I spent dozens of hours on the

20 10:24:11 phone with both of them. So they were certainly not

21 10:24:15 ignored.

22 10:24:16 BY MR. PLATZER:

23 10:24:16 Q. Approximately how many block only partners

24 10:24:19 were using YouTube's Audible Magic tools during the

25 10:24:21 first half of 2007?
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2 10:24:23 A. I don't have a precise number in mind, but --

3 10:24:30 but a good number.

4 10:24:31 Q. Were any of the what one might call the big

5 10:24:35 six Hollywood studios among them?

6 10:24:39 A. As I said earlier, I did not familiarize

7 10:24:41 myself with the -- the specific names.

8 10:24:53 Q. You testified earlier that you couldn't recall

9 10:24:56 whether the -- the YTAM database was ever used for

10 10:25:03 anything other than music. Do you recall whether the

11 10:25:07 YTB database was used for anything other than music?

12 10:25:11 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form.

13 10:25:13 THE WITNESS: I do recall that the YTB

14 10:25:16 partition included fingerprints from -- for non-music

15 10:25:24 assets.

16 10:25:24 BY MR. PLATZER:

17 10:25:25 Q. Did it include fingerprints for television

18 10:25:27 programming?

19 10:25:31 A. Yes, it would have included fingerprints for

20 10:25:34 television programming.

21 10:25:36 Q. Did it include fingerprints for movies?

22 10:25:40 A. I believe so.

23 10:25:46 Q. I'd next like to ask about the YTU partition,

24 10:25:51 back on King Exhibit -- I believe it's 4, the third

25 10:25:56 bullet point on the page we were looking at. Sorry,
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2 10:49:24 blocking, or was it also used for other purposes?

3 10:49:27 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

4 10:49:32 THE WITNESS: The policies held with -- within

5 10:49:35 Y- -- with those -- that set of fingerprints would have

6 10:49:40 varied across the three -- the -- the -- the three

7 10:49:46 policy types, be it block, monetize, or track.

8 10:49:50 BY MR. PLATZER:

9 10:49:53 Q. And it says here, "UGC claimed as reference by

10 10:50:00 partners." Can you explain your understanding of the

11 10:50:04 concept of a partner claiming content using YouTube's

12 10:50:08 system?

13 10:50:15 A. Claiming, as the word means in English, is --

14 10:50:22 is the concept of -- of saying that I have an ownership

15 10:50:26 stake in this piece of content.

16 10:50:29 Q. And how would a partner communicate that

17 10:50:31 information to YouTube in order for that content to end

18 10:50:34 up in the YTU database?

19 10:50:38 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. It's

20 10:50:41 vague as to time.

21 10:50:44 THE WITNESS: So claiming and -- and adding it

22 10:50:49 to this database are two distinct things. So claiming

23 10:50:56 of UGC can happen in many different ways through our

24 10:51:01 systems. So --

25
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2 10:51:04 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 10:51:08 Q. Were only a subset of claimed UGC

4 10:51:12 fingerprinted and added to the YTU -- YTU partition?

5 10:51:16 MR. WILLEN: Objection as to form. Vague as

6 10:51:18 to time.

7 10:51:19 THE WITNESS: So UGC was added to the

8 10:51:21 reference database at the express request of a rights

9 10:51:25 holder.

10 10:51:26 Now, it's very important to understand

11 10:51:29 something about the claiming of UGC, which I -- I think

12 10:51:36 we should probably clear up, which is that a rights

13 10:51:40 holder is within their rights to claim a video on the

14 10:51:45 site based on a single -- a single frame of a video

15 10:51:53 being something that is -- is their property.

16 10:51:59 So let's just take the -- illustrate this with

17 10:52:03 an example. So let's say there's a ten-minute video,

18 10:52:06 and one second of it is your property, and you don't

19 10:52:10 want that one second of your property on the site.

20 10:52:12 You're within your rights to send us a

21 10:52:14 takedown notice for that 10-minute video, but it's

22 10:52:20 entirely -- it would be entirely inappropriate of you to

23 10:52:24 then ask us to turn that entire 10-minute video into a

24 10:52:30 fingerprint reference, and that -- the reason being that

25 10:52:34 then you would get matches on the other nine minutes and
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2 10:52:39 59 seconds.

3 10:52:40 So that same user that had uploaded the

4 10:52:43 10-minute video with one second of your content in it,

5 10:52:47 they could edit that video, remove that one second and

6 10:52:52 re-upload it to the site, and if we had a fingerprint in

7 10:52:55 place that said that whole ten minutes, match against it

8 10:52:59 and call it your property, then -- then you would be

9 10:53:02 making a overbroad copyright claim against that

10 10:53:06 uploader.

11 10:53:07 So this is one of the key areas of

12 10:53:10 responsibility on behalf of -- on the side of the rights

13 10:53:14 holder to operate the system, their side of the system,

14 10:53:18 in full cognizance of the nuance of the system, and --

15 10:53:25 and thus why we typically just can't grant access to

16 10:53:31 absolutely anybody without any educational process to

17 10:53:34 these types of tools. It's very important that they

18 10:53:37 understand what it is that they're doing, how they

19 10:53:39 operate and what their responsibilities are in operating

20 10:53:42 it.

21 10:53:42 BY MR. PLATZER:

22 10:53:58 Q. Your testimony was that UGC was added to the

23 10:54:02 reference database at the express request of a content

24 10:54:05 owner. Is there any particular procedure to which that

25 10:54:09 request had to be communicated to YouTube in order for



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

71

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 10:54:14 claimed UGC to be added to the YTU partition?

3 10:54:19 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form. Vague as to

4 10:54:21 time.

5 10:54:23 THE WITNESS: As -- as a practical matter,

6 10:54:25 there must be a mechanism or how would it happen? So --

7 10:54:31 so, yes, there is a mechanism for a rights holder to

8 10:54:38 request this facility.

9 10:54:39 BY MR. PLATZER:

10 10:54:40 Q. And what is that mechanism?

11 10:54:47 A. That mechanism is typically searching for a --

12 10:54:56 or -- or using our -- our search tools to -- to first

13 10:55:00 identify that -- that -- that UGC. Then the

14 10:55:07 responsibility is to review that UGC in its entirety to

15 10:55:12 ascertain that you own the -- to own -- that you own

16 10:55:15 that clip from beginning to end, and then a simple check

17 10:55:21 box that says -- I can't remember the precise verbiage,

18 10:55:24 but it says something to the effect of add as reference.

19 10:55:31 Q. Okay. So the UGC that's claimed by a

20 10:55:35 partner had -- would only be added to YTU if they search

21 10:55:39 for it using the -- YouTube's search tool for partners,

22 10:55:46 watch it in its entirety, and check a box directing

23 10:55:50 YouTube to add it as a reference fingerprint?

24 10:55:52 MR. WILLEN: So, objection to the form,

25 10:55:54 mischaracterizes the testimony. It's vague as to time.



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

72

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 10:55:58 It's also ambiguous as to the word "partner."

3 10:56:08 THE WITNESS: I think I -- and I think I stand

4 10:56:11 by my former description of this. And -- so as a -- as

5 10:56:18 a pragmatic matter, the -- the express piece of work, if

6 10:56:25 you will, that goes beyond just the -- the, you know --

7 10:56:31 is simply checking a box. The fact that they have to

8 10:56:35 view the video in its entirety before they check that

9 10:56:38 box, is more a matter of just sort of ex- -- external

10 10:56:42 reality, as opposed to any sort of burden that we're

11 10:56:46 trying to place on -- on -- on the users of the system.

12 10:56:49 BY MR. PLATZER:

13 10:56:50 Q. But do they have to view the video in its

14 10:56:52 entirety within YouTube's search console?

15 10:56:56 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

16 10:57:00 THE WITNESS: They could -- they could view

17 10:57:02 that video on YouTube itself, just as easily, but they

18 10:57:07 need to basic- -- so what they need to do is they need

19 10:57:11 to represent and warrant to YouTube that the entirety of

20 10:57:18 the video that they're asking us to turn into a

21 10:57:21 reference file is indeed their property.

22 10:57:24 How they make those determinations is -- it's

23 10:57:28 flexible. So they could certainly do it on YouTube.com

24 10:57:33 just like any other user does, and make that

25 10:57:36 determination there.
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2 10:57:36 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 10:57:38 Q. Can a content owner request that YouTube add a

4 10:57:47 claimed piece of UGC to the YTU partition in the absence

5 10:57:52 of a prior agreement with YouTube of the sort you

6 10:57:56 described earlier?

7 10:57:58 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. Vague as

8 10:58:00 to time.

9 10:58:06 THE WITNESS: So what I've been trying to --

10 10:58:08 to bring to life for you is the notion that a -- that

11 10:58:17 when a -- a company or a person asks us to use UGC to

12 10:58:24 make future claims on their behalf, that it's very

13 10:58:28 important that they understand their responsibilities.

14 10:58:31 So in a broad sense I would say that under an

15 10:58:36 agreement of -- and an under- -- a mutual understanding

16 10:58:40 of what those responsibilities are is vital to the good

17 10:58:44 operating of such a system, and we endeavor to always --

18 10:58:49 we've always endeavored to -- to have that level of

19 10:58:54 understanding between the two parties before access to

20 10:58:57 such a system was granted.

21 10:59:01 And I think we can agree that it's a somewhat

22 10:59:05 complex topic, and that -- that it took me a little

23 10:59:07 while to explain, and it took a number of questions to

24 10:59:11 really get to the bottom of exactly how that functions.

25 10:59:14 So I think we can agree that it would not be
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2 10:59:16 obvious on the face of it, to -- to the layman that had

3 10:59:21 never viewed such a system, that such responsibilities

4 10:59:23 would -- would exist.

5 10:59:25 BY MR. PLATZER:

6 10:59:26 Q. Okay. But -- you've explained the rationale

7 10:59:29 for your policy, but I -- I still don't think I have an

8 10:59:32 answer as to what your policy actually is.

9 10:59:35 My question is this. If a content owner has

10 10:59:38 not entered an agreement with YouTube, can they claim

11 10:59:43 UGC for the purposes of adding it to the YTB par- -- or

12 10:59:48 the YTU partition?

13 10:59:50 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form, and I

14 10:59:51 think this has been asked and now answered twice.

15 10:59:55 MR. PLATZER: It's been asked twice. It

16 10:59:57 hasn't been answered at all.

17 11:00:00 MR. WILLEN: Maybe he didn't answer it the way

18 11:00:02 you wanted him to answer it.

19 11:00:06 MR. PLATZER: It's a yes or no question.

20 11:00:07 MR. WILLEN: Maybe it is and maybe it isn't.

21 11:00:09 THE WITNESS: Okay. All right. I think what

22 11:00:10 I'm trying to do is to -- to formulate these -- you

23 11:00:15 know, to formulate this in a way that is precise to what

24 11:00:18 actually happened.

25 11:00:22 So -- so as a -- so it is true that both



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

75

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 11:00:25 parties needed to come to a mutual understanding of what

3 11:00:29 was entailed in using this system before access was

4 11:00:34 granted to the rights holder to use the system.

5 11:00:38 BY MR. PLATZER:

6 11:00:42 Q. And that understanding had to be reflected in

7 11:00:44 some kind of agreement?

8 11:00:46 A. Well, "agreement" is an English word. So I

9 11:00:50 know you guys use it in a very specific way, but I would

10 11:00:54 say that coming to an understanding would be called

11 11:00:57 agreement.

12 11:01:04 Q. Did a content owner need to be able to access

13 11:01:08 a restricted portion of the YouTube website in order to

14 11:01:11 use this tool?

15 11:01:12 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. Vague as

16 11:01:16 to time.

17 11:01:17 THE WITNESS: The specific check box for

18 11:01:22 saying, this video, add it to the database, is a -- is

19 11:01:30 not open to everybody on YouTube.com.

20 11:01:32 BY MR. PLATZER:

21 11:01:34 Q. Okay. So you need to access a restricted

22 11:01:38 portion of the website in order to --

23 11:01:41 A. As we discussed --

24 11:01:42 THE REPORTER: One at a time. ". . . in order

25 11:01:43 to. . ."
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2 11:01:43 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 11:01:44 Q. -- utilize that check box.

4 11:01:46 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

5 11:01:47 Mischaracterizes the testimony.

6 11:01:50 THE WITNESS: After all that, do you mind

7 11:01:51 restating, because it got --

8 11:01:52 BY MR. PLATZER:

9 11:01:59 Q. In order to utilize the check box that adds a

10 11:02:03 reference fingerprint for a piece of claimed UGC to the

11 11:02:09 YTU partition, does a content owner need to access a

12 11:02:13 restricted portion of the YouTube website?

13 11:02:16 MR. WILLEN: And same objection.

14 11:02:23 THE WITNESS: So to -- to be clear, that

15 11:02:25 the -- the -- or as -- as we discussed, not --

16 11:02:30 they're -- these tools are not available to -- to

17 11:02:36 just -- they're -- they're not part of YouTube.com, per

18 11:02:39 se. They're not on the public website. They're not

19 11:02:42 used by -- by everyone. These are professional tools

20 11:02:46 used in conjunction with understandings with serious

21 11:02:51 parties.

22 11:02:52 BY MR. PLATZER:

23 11:02:56 Q. And again -- and I realize that you like to

24 11:03:00 explain the reasons behind your policies, but I still

25 11:03:03 don't have an answer as to my question which is that, is
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2 11:03:06 this check box that you've been talking about only

3 11:03:09 accessible through a portion of the YouTube website that

4 11:03:12 is restricted?

5 11:03:13 MR. WILLEN: He's answered this question three

6 11:03:15 times.

7 11:03:15 MR. PLATZER: He's explained policies three

8 11:03:18 times, but it's a yes or no question. Is it part of the

9 11:03:20 restricted website?

10 11:03:22 MR. WILLEN: Well, you -- you can give the --

11 11:03:24 whatever answer you think is appropriate to the

12 11:03:26 question.

13 11:03:30 THE WITNESS: So I'm trying to be clear

14 11:03:32 that -- that as we talk about services like

15 11:03:38 fingerprinting, that those are only accessible to -- to

16 11:03:48 entities where we have some form of agreement, and I use

17 11:03:54 "agreement" in the broad sense, in the broad sort of

18 11:03:58 normal English sense of "agreement."

19 11:04:00 BY MR. PLATZER:

20 11:04:01 Q. And specifically how are those tools

21 11:04:03 accessible? If a content owner wants to utilize that

22 11:04:08 tool, do they have to go to a website that is protected

23 11:04:11 by a password, rather than through the YouTube website

24 11:04:17 generally?

25 11:04:18 A. So rights holders are given login credentials
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2 11:04:29 to access these tools.

3 11:04:31 Q. Thank you.

4 11:04:41 Do these three database partitions on the page

5 11:04:45 of King 3 that we've been looking at, YTAM, YTB, and

6 11:04:50 YTU, do those represent the universe of content that

7 11:04:55 Audible Magic was searching for on behalf of YouTube?

8 11:04:58 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

9 11:05:09 THE WITNESS: So these are the specific

10 11:05:13 databases against which YouTube queries.

11 11:05:16 BY MR. PLATZER:

12 11:05:16 Q. Okay. So YouTube would only query Audible

13 11:05:19 Magic to identify a reference fingerprint if that

14 11:05:23 reference fingerprint were located in one of these three

15 11:05:26 partitions?

16 11:05:27 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

17 11:05:28 THE WITNESS: That's -- yeah, that's -- yes,

18 11:05:32 I'm -- that's -- these were our databases.

19 11:05:37 BY MR. PLATZER:

20 11:05:41 Q. Okay. I'd like to ask about how videos that

21 11:05:48 are removed from the YouTube website are treated with

22 11:05:52 regards to these databases.

23 11:05:56 To start off, are any videos that are removed

24 11:06:01 by YouTube from the YouTube website fingerprinted and

25 11:06:07 then added to an Audible Magic database with a policy of
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2 11:22:32 THE WITNESS: I just wanted to say that, you

3 11:22:34 know, in a heated moment, I -- I did say that you would

4 11:22:37 be well within your rights to -- to ask for removal of

5 11:22:42 a -- of a -- of a video from the site based on, you

6 11:22:46 know, one second of content.

7 11:22:49 I'm not actually, you know, a copyright

8 11:22:52 lawyer, and not really in a position to -- to speak to

9 11:22:55 that. And this was a -- you know, I don't think that

10 11:22:58 would actually be a logical thing to do. I feel like

11 11:23:01 the -- you know, the -- from whatever expertise I have

12 11:23:05 in the matter, that would be -- that would be

13 11:23:07 inappropriate at that level. But anyway --

14 11:23:10 BY MR. PLATZER:

15 11:23:12 Q. All right. Understood.

16 11:23:15 Before we broke to change the tape, we were

17 11:23:18 discussing what happens to videos that YouTube removes

18 11:23:23 from the service, and we were -- had just finished

19 11:23:27 talking about terms of service violations.

20 11:23:29 A. Uh-huh.

21 11:23:30 Q. The next category I wanted to ask about are

22 11:23:33 videos that are removed pursuant to a sort of formal

23 11:23:36 DMCA takedown request. And is that terminology that

24 11:23:42 you're familiar with, "DMCA takedown request"?

25 11:23:46 A. Yes.
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2 11:23:46 Q. And I think I know what the answer to this is

3 11:23:50 based on the colloquy we've had so far, but I just want

4 11:23:54 to confirm. If YouTube received a DMCA takedown request

5 11:23:59 from a copyright owner, and that takedown request did

6 11:24:04 not go through the password protected portion of the

7 11:24:08 YouTube website that partners could use to check the box

8 11:24:15 and say add this to YTU -- in other words, if it were a

9 11:24:21 traditional DMCA takedown request, such as a letter or

10 11:24:26 an e-mail requesting that a video be removed from

11 11:24:28 YouTube's service, would the video that the content

12 11:24:34 owner requested be removed, be fingerprinted and added

13 11:24:38 to the YTU partition?

14 11:24:42 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

15 11:24:43 THE WITNESS: I think the -- the -- if you

16 11:24:48 examine the level of information that comes in on a DMCA

17 11:24:53 takedown request, it does not include any information

18 11:24:58 about the -- the quantity of the video that is being

19 11:25:05 objected to. It simply just -- it says I have a right

20 11:25:09 at some level to request a takedown of this, and I --

21 11:25:16 and I am doing so.

22 11:25:18 So that does not give YouTube sufficient

23 11:25:20 information to be able to diligently understand whether

24 11:25:26 that user upload is -- meets the criteria for it being

25 11:25:39 included in fingerprint database.
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2 11:25:42 So as we -- the example we discussed was if

3 11:25:45 it's -- if you're making your claim of copyright

4 11:25:49 infringement based on a very short segment of content in

5 11:25:53 that video, and your DMCA notice simply says take this

6 11:25:58 video down, with no additional information, then we are

7 11:26:02 not in a position to be able to use that content as a

8 11:26:07 reference file for future matching.

9 11:26:09 BY MR. PLATZER:

10 11:26:13 Q. So is the answer no? It's -- DMCA notices are

11 11:26:18 not added to the YTU partition?

12 11:26:22 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. The

13 11:26:23 answer is what the answer was.

14 11:26:31 THE WITNESS: So as -- as a matter of course,

15 11:26:34 they are not added automatically to the fingerprint

16 11:26:38 database.

17 11:26:43 The -- the criteria being was it reviewed, and

18 11:26:47 do we have a statement from that right holder that --

19 11:26:53 that they are claiming the entirety of that piece of

20 11:26:56 content, as opposed to any portion thereof.

21 11:26:59 BY MR. PLATZER:

22 11:27:06 Q. Has YouTube ever added -- removed videos to

23 11:27:12 the YTU partition based on a DMCA notice in the absence

24 11:27:19 of partner use of the password protected copyright

25 11:27:26 console?



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

87

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 11:27:28 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form.

3 11:27:39 THE WITNESS: I think that we had conducted

4 11:27:41 some -- some limited experiments in this realm to --

5 11:27:48 to -- to see to what extent it would create reliable

6 11:27:55 results, and the results were negative.

7 11:27:58 BY MR. PLATZER:

8 11:28:01 Q. And to be clear, the experiments you're

9 11:28:05 referring to are limited experiments with fingerprinting

10 11:28:09 videos that were subject to a takedown notice, and then

11 11:28:15 blocking matches to those fingerprints going forward?

12 11:28:18 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

13 11:28:20 THE WITNESS: So the experiments were taking

14 11:28:22 some -- some segments of DMCA notices, creating

15 11:28:28 fingerprints, and -- to -- to -- to block future

16 11:28:34 subsequent uploads, but, you know, the direct experience

17 11:28:39 was that the -- that it was highly inaccurate.

18 11:28:42 And -- and, you know, would we -- you know,

19 11:28:47 as -- as previously stated, there are many rights

20 11:28:52 holders in this equation, and -- and every user that

21 11:28:56 uploads to the site with their -- with wholly created

22 11:29:05 videos, you know, not using content from -- from

23 11:29:08 anywhere else, like when I take a video of my kids, I

24 11:29:13 am -- I'm also protected by copyright, and so we must

25 11:29:18 balance the rights of all parties in this equation.
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2 11:29:21 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 11:29:26 Q. When did these experiments take place?

4 11:29:28 A. In the -- in the summer of 2009. It had

5 11:29:36 always been supposed before that that this would not --

6 11:29:40 that this would lead to poor results, but we decided to

7 11:29:46 test it and, indeed, it led to poor results.

8 11:29:50 Q. So prior to the summer of 2009, YouTube had

9 11:29:53 not tested fingerprinting videos subject to takedown

10 11:30:01 notices?

11 11:30:02 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form.

12 11:30:03 THE WITNESS: To videos subject to takedown

13 11:30:05 notices where no request -- where no review and

14 11:30:10 subsequent request by a rights holder for it to be

15 11:30:14 included in the fingerprinting database was made.

16 11:30:17 So to be clear, we did create a lot of

17 11:30:21 fingerprints subsequent to DMCA takedowns where the

18 11:30:26 rights holder expressly asked us to also create a

19 11:30:29 fingerprint.

20 11:30:29 BY MR. PLATZER:

21 11:30:37 Q. Was the experiment in the summer of 2009 using

22 11:30:40 Audible Magic technology?

23 11:30:42 A. It was with Google technology.

24 11:31:02 Q. The portion of the YouTube website to which

25 11:31:07 partners could access the check box that requested
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2 11:31:10 the -- a claimed video be fingerprinted, do you have a

3 11:31:14 term that you like to refer to that console as?

4 11:31:19 MR. WILLEN: Objection. Vague as to time.

5 11:31:23 THE WITNESS: Um --

6 11:31:23 BY MR. PLATZER:

7 11:31:24 Q. Again, I'm trying to establish a common

8 11:31:28 vocabulary in order to discuss that interface.

9 11:31:31 A. Today we refer to that interface as CMS, which

10 11:31:35 would -- means content management system.

11 11:31:41 THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. ". . . which

12 11:31:41 means. . . ."

13 11:31:42 THE WITNESS: Content management system.

14 11:31:45 In earlier incarnations of that tool set it

15 11:31:50 had been called "CYC" or "claim your content."

16 11:31:52 BY MR. PLATZER:

17 11:31:53 Q. Okay.

18 11:31:57 A. We just had to discover a more prosaic

19 11:32:02 descriptive name.

20 11:32:07 Q. Other than the experiment that you described

21 11:32:09 in the summer of 2009, had YouTube ever fingerprinted

22 11:32:14 videos that were subject to a DMCA takedown notice that

23 11:32:19 was not received through CYC or CMS?

24 11:32:26 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

25 11:32:37 THE WITNESS: Certainly CMS was the standard
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2 12:22:06 let me take a moment.

3 12:25:11 Okay. I remember at the time being very

4 12:25:15 confused by the -- the financial model underlying these

5 12:25:18 two proposals, and I'm still confused now, reading them.

6 12:25:24 So I hope I won't have to speak to the economics

7 12:25:28 outlined, but I familiarized myself with the document.

8 12:25:34 Q. Were you yourself involved in the discussions

9 12:25:36 with Audible Magic about the two proposed service

10 12:25:41 enhancements?

11 12:25:43 A. Clearly my name figures in this e-mail

12 12:25:47 exchange.

13 12:25:48 Q. Well, beyond this e-mail, did you talk to

14 12:25:51 anyone at Audible Magic about these proposed service

15 12:25:55 enhancements?

16 12:25:56 A. Yes, I was involved in verbal discussions

17 12:25:59 beyond this -- this e-mail exchange.

18 12:26:02 Q. Did YouTube ever make a counteroffer on price?

19 12:26:08 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

20 12:26:10 THE WITNESS: I -- I -- I don't recall if

21 12:26:14 we -- if we countered on price or not. Sorry. I just

22 12:26:20 don't remember.

23 12:26:21 Doesn't seem to be included in this e-mail

24 12:26:24 thread. When it came to the commercial negotiations --

25 12:26:28 I just want to -- I should probably clarify that Chris
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2 12:26:32 Maxcy was the business development person responsible

3 12:26:36 for the commercial side of this, and my responsibility

4 12:26:38 was in driving forward the product design and the --

5 12:26:43 more the implementation side of things.

6 12:26:48 BY MR. PLATZER:

7 12:26:48 Q. Okay. So if I'm characterizing your testimony

8 12:26:52 earlier correctly, the two things about this proposal

9 12:26:56 that YouTube found disagreeable

10 12:27:00 Is that a fair

11 12:27:04 characterization?

12 12:27:07 A. So my characterization would be that, based on

13 12:27:12 volumes at the time, it looked like the immediate price

14 12:27:16 increase would be . If you look at the way the

15 12:27:20 numbers are structured, it also includes

16 12:27:26

17 12:27:30

18 12:27:33 So as a starting point, it was . But it

19 12:27:36

20 12:27:44

21 12:27:49

22 12:27:53

23 12:27:56

24 12:27:59

25 12:28:02 And the other side was, on the -- on the
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2 12:28:05 service level, they -- they were simply

3 12:28:08 .

4 12:28:12 So it was an o

5 12:28:17

6 12:28:21 .

7 12:28:23 Q. Did YouTube counter on

8 12:28:25 ?

9 12:28:26

10 12:28:32

11 12:28:37

12 12:28:40

13 12:28:43

14 12:28:46 There was some discussion around the numbers.

15 12:28:48 I -- I don't know what -- what your definition is of

16 12:28:51 "counter." So there was a discussion. If -- if a

17 12:28:54 discussion is a counter, then, yes, there was a counter.

18 12:28:58 If you mean by "a counter" did we send back

19 12:29:01 a -- a red-lined version of their proposal with -- with

20 12:29:06 other -- you know, with -- with different numbers or a

21 12:29:10 different structure or do it in a formal way, that I'm

22 12:29:15 not aware of.

23 12:29:16 Q. Okay. What is your understanding of the

24 12:29:19 service that Audible Magic was proposing to provide to

25 12:29:22 the Long Form Video Proposal?
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2 12:29:34 A. My understanding was that they would enable a

3 12:29:40

4 12:29:45

5 12:29:54

6 12:29:57 Q. And was the purpose of that proposal to have

7 12:30:01

8 12:30:04 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. When you

9 12:30:09 say "the purpose of that proposal," I'm not sure what

10 12:30:13 that even means. "Purpose" from whose perspective?

11 12:30:17 BY MR. PLATZER:

12 12:30:17 Q. Well, if you'd turn to page 1388, paragraph 2,

13 12:30:28 take a look at paragraph 2 on page 1388.

14 12:30:46

15 12:30:48

16 12:30:48

17 12:30:53

18 12:30:56

19 12:31:00

20 12:31:05

21 12:31:07

22 12:31:07

23 12:31:08

24 12:31:11

25 12:31:15
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2 12:31:18

3 12:31:20 You wrote this language in paragraph 2; right?

4 12:31:23 A. Yes.

5 12:31:25 Q. So what -- was Audible Magic responding to an

6 12:31:35 inquiry by you for a service which would grant

7 12:31:39

8 12:31:43 A. I -- I think the way I described it in the --

9 12:31:47 in -- in the paragraph is -- is -- is pretty clear, that

10 12:31:51

11 12:31:58

12 12:32:00 I'd also like to add that concurrently with

13 12:32:03 this communication that -- that Google was already well

14 12:32:11 underway building its own audio and video fingerprinting

15 12:32:16 service, and that that system was already contemplated

16 12:32:22 to do exactly this.

17 12:32:25 So that was another component of the decision

18 12:32:30 process, was simply that this type of functionality

19 12:32:37 would be arriving in -- in the coming months, and so

20 12:32:42 that there were other means to accomplish this goal.

21 12:32:54 Q. And YouTube ultimately didn't reach an

22 12:32:57 agreement with Audible Magic on the Long Form Video

23 12:32:59 Proposal --

24 12:32:59 MR. WILLEN: Objection --

25
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2 12:32:59 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 12:33:01 Q. -- correct?

4 12:33:02 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

5 12:33:06 THE WITNESS: The proposal that's in front of

6 12:33:07 me right now did not result in a -- in a change of our

7 12:33:15 service. I think it's worth noting, though, that we did

8 12:33:22 agree to a -- an upgrade to the original service

9 12:33:30 agreement in -- in 2008.

10 12:33:34 BY MR. PLATZER:

11 12:33:35 Q. And that upgrade was to

12 12:33:39 ?

13 12:33:40

14 12:33:45

15 12:33:52

16 12:33:57

17 12:34:01

18 12:34:08

19 12:34:14

20 12:34:18 Q. Okay. But the -- the upgrade that you agreed

21 12:34:22 to with Audible Magic in 2008, that didn't include Type

22 12:34:25 3 look-ups; right?

23 12:34:27 A. It was a different form of -- of upgrade, but

24 12:34:31 we did upgrade our service with them.

25 12:34:33 Q. An upgrade to service levels, not an upgrade
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2 13:26:52 MR. WILLEN: I don't know if he was entirely

3 13:26:54 listening to the question, because he was distracted

4 13:26:57 based on --

5 13:26:59 THE WITNESS: He -- he put his mouse in a

6 13:27:01 puddle. I was worried again.

7 13:27:04 MR. WILLEN: Have the question again.

8 13:27:05 BY MR. PLATZER:

9 13:27:06 Q. Was it YouTube's view that Audible Magic

10 13:27:06 technology had a high accuracy rate?

11 13:27:09 A. Yes. That is correct. And it's a matter of

12 13:27:17 tuning as well. So, you know, I think, as you seek to

13 13:27:19 get higher recall, you put more pressure on your

14 13:27:22 accuracy. So you start -- so it's a -- you know, it --

15 13:27:26 it's a -- it's a balance point in any system, which I

16 13:27:29 think would also be true of a human.

17 13:27:32 You know, as a human, if you're trying to

18 13:27:35 respond to a -- you know, to something where you're

19 13:27:38 scanning through your memory, you can either be

20 13:27:41 extremely conservative and very accurate, or you can dig

21 13:27:45 a little deeper and make more suppositions and take more

22 13:27:49 guesses, and you'll bring back more information, but

23 13:27:52 your accuracy rate will suffer.

24 13:27:54 Q. Did YouTube tune Audible Magic's

25 13:28:01 fingerprinting technology to minimize false positives?
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2 13:28:08 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

3 13:28:09 THE WITNESS: Audible Magic did not surface

4 13:28:09 any methods for us to tune that balance point. They

5 13:28:09 tuned it that way.

6 13:28:11 BY MR. PLATZER:

7 13:28:12 Q. Okay. And did -- is the sentiment that's

8 13:28:15 expressed on the page we're looking at on this exhibit

9 13:28:20 that Audible Magic had high accuracy, was that YouTube's

10 13:28:25 view for the use of Audible Magic to identify television

11 13:28:29 content as well?

12 13:28:30 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. Vague as

13 13:28:34 to time.

14 13:28:39 THE WITNESS: This bullet doesn't speak to

15 13:28:41 that, and I don't think that -- I think it's not -- you

16 13:28:44 know, the level of specificity here is, in general, the

17 13:28:49 Audible Magic service has produced accurate results.

18 13:28:56 BY MR. PLATZER:

19 13:28:57 Q. Well, independently of this document -- I'm

20 13:28:59 asking you in your capacity as a corporate

21 13:29:02 representative for YouTube -- was -- was it YouTube's

22 13:29:06 belief that Audible Magic was accurate for identifying

23 13:29:08 television content?

24 13:29:10 MR. WILLEN: Objection. Vague as to time.

25 13:29:16 THE WITNESS: I think there -- that there
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2 13:29:18 is -- there is an im- -- an important caveat in the --

3 13:29:24 any -- in the ability of the Audible Magic system to

4 13:29:34 provide reliable claim information around television,

5 13:29:40 and the -- the -- the nub of that, the -- the -- the --

6 13:29:43 the key issue, is that every -- you know, I think

7 13:29:51 probably 99 percent of movies have a sound track with

8 13:29:55 music in them, and certainly music also permeates

9 13:29:59 television.

10 13:30:00 And so, not as a technical matter, but as a

11 13:30:04 policy matter or as an ownership issue -- and earlier we

12 13:30:08 had talked about there really being two sides to a

13 13:30:11 fingerprinting system. So one is the raw fingerprinting

14 13:30:15 and its ability to match and the assets -- you know, and

15 13:30:17 getting -- getting hold of media files, turning those

16 13:30:21 into fingerprints, and then matching based on those.

17 13:30:23 But there's an equally important second aspect to these

18 13:30:27 systems, which is the metadata, the ownership, scoped by

19 13:30:32 territory, and the policy information that goes with

20 13:30:34 that.

21 13:30:35 So as you start to take in fingerprints

22 13:30:38 from -- from television and from movies, what we found

23 13:30:46 is that, not as a technical matter, but as a -- as that

24 13:30:50 sort of secondary policy, metadata, really identifying

25 13:30:54 the right owners and who should -- who has standing to
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2 13:30:58 talk about whether this thing should be up or not -- if

3 13:31:02 you're looking purely at the audio side, you end up

4 13:31:05 getting significant numbers of errors based on the music

5 13:31:08 content being embedded in movies and TV.

6 13:31:20 So, you know, you asked me about false

7 13:31:23 positives coming in from -- from Audible Magic. We --

8 13:31:28 you know, as a -- as a purely technical matter, no false

9 13:31:34 positives. As a policy and ownership matter, movies and

10 13:31:39 TV, if you're just matching on the audio channel,

11 13:31:46 created significant inaccuracies.

12 13:31:48 BY MR. PLATZER:

13 13:31:49 Q. Did YouTube ever consider adding a layer of

14 13:31:52 human review following the Audible Magic matches in

15 13:31:55 order to ameliorate that problem?

16 13:32:00 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. It's

17 13:32:00 outside the scope of this notice, but if you have a

18 13:32:03 personal understanding, you can reference that.

19 13:32:09 THE WITNESS: So to be clear, if we were to --

20 13:32:20 let's just say, hypothetically, if we were to sit down

21 13:32:23 and say, okay, let's review every match that comes in

22 13:32:27 from a movie or a TV asset. That still wouldn't allow

23 13:32:37 us to make that result perfect, because that -- the --

24 13:32:40 the -- either the studio, or the broadcaster might

25 13:32:44 actually have standing to make claims based on music
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2 13:32:49 that's embedded in those assets or they may not. And

3 13:32:53 the only way that we can know that is for that entity

4 13:32:57 themselves to make that representation.

5 13:33:01 We can't magically ever know who truly owns

6 13:33:05 anything. We need the owners of those things to tell us

7 13:33:09 that they have that ownership, and to -- and to specify

8 13:33:15 that to us. And I think that's precisely why the law is

9 13:33:19 written the way it is.

10 13:33:20 BY MR. PLATZER:

11 13:33:21 Q. Well, I'm not asking hypothetically how such a

12 13:33:23 system would work. I'm asking historically whether

13 13:33:26 YouTube ever actually considered implementing such a

14 13:33:29 system, "such a system" meaning a layer of human review

15 13:33:35 following Audible -- Audible Magic matches.

16 13:33:37 MR. WILLEN: So I'm going to again object.

17 13:33:39 The question about human review is outside the scope of

18 13:33:42 his notice, but if this witness has a personal

19 13:33:45 understanding of the issues related to the question, he

20 13:33:48 can answer.

21 13:33:50 MR. PLATZER: Well, Brian, no, the -- within

22 13:33:52 the scope of this notice is how YouTube used match

23 13:33:56 information from Audible Magic. I'm entitled to ask the

24 13:33:59 uses to which that information was put, and if that

25 13:34:01 information was used to flag videos for human review
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2 13:35:43 companies.

3 13:35:43 BY MR. PLATZER:

4 13:36:04 Q. Did YouTube ever experience a problem with

5 13:36:06 Audible Magic's technology as applied to TV and movie

6 13:36:13 content that the Aud- -- that Audible Magic couldn't

7 13:36:19 identify the content unless it was identified at the

8 13:36:22 beginning of the clip?

9 13:36:24 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form, vague.

10 13:36:30 THE WITNESS: Yeah, could -- I'm -- could you

11 13:36:33 rephrase that to be a little more precise on what it is

12 13:36:36 you would like to know?

13 13:36:38 BY MR. PLATZER:

14 13:36:38 Q. Well, the -- earlier we discussed --

15 13:36:41 A. Uh-huh.

16 13:36:42 Q. -- the fact that YouTube was only having

17 13:36:44 Audible Magic query unknowns against the first sec- --

18 13:36:47 . Do you recall that

19 13:36:51 conversation?

20 13:36:52 A. Yes.

21 13:36:53 Q. Did that aspect of the Audible Magic service

22 13:36:56 that it was providing to YouTube ever pose problems for

23 13:37:00 YouTube's ability to identify television or movie

24 13:37:03 content using Audible Magic's technology?

25 13:37:07 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. Vague as
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2 13:37:09 to "pose problems."

3 13:37:12 THE WITNESS: So -- so what sort of problems

4 13:37:14 did you -- did you -- do you have in mind, so I --

5 13:37:15 BY MR. PLATZER:

6 13:37:17 Q. False negatives.

7 13:37:18 A. False negatives? Every one of -- every system

8 13:37:24 that attempts to do automated identification will have

9 13:37:29 false negatives. This would -- the issue that you've

10 13:37:38 spoken to would contribute to -- to gaps in coverage as

11 13:37:47 a matter of logic.

12 13:37:49 Q. But historically was that a problem of which

13 13:37:53 YouTube had any specific awareness?

14 13:37:57 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

15 13:38:01 THE WITNESS: I mean, I think, as we discussed

16 13:38:03 in -- in -- in the earlier documents, we were interested

17 13:38:07 in a more expansive service on those lines, and that

18 13:38:17 is -- was a key design principle in the service that we

19 13:38:22 built on Google's technology.

20 13:38:33 THE REPORTER: 7 -- 9, I mean.

21 13:38:35 MR. PLATZER: 9.

22 13:38:37 THE REPORTER: Excuse me.

23 13:38:38 (King Deposition Exhibit Number 9 was marked

24 13:38:38 for identification.)

25
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2 13:38:38 BY MR. PLATZER:

3 13:38:40 Q. The court reporter has handed you what's been

4 13:38:42 marked as King Exhibit 9. It's a July 3rd, 2007, e-mail

5 13:38:49 from David Eun to Lew Rothman, bears Bates number Google

6 13:38:56 798493 through 798495.

7 13:39:01 Have you seen the e-mail that's been marked as

8 13:39:07 King Exhibit 9 before?

9 13:39:10 MR. WILLEN: Give him a chance to flip through

10 13:39:10 that.

11 13:40:03 THE WITNESS: This rings a bell.

12 13:40:05 BY MR. PLATZER:

13 13:40:07 Q. Do you recall there being an issue in July of

14 13:40:10 2007 of the movie "Sicko" repeatedly being uploaded to

15 13:40:17 YouTube following takedown?

16 13:40:20 A. My recollection of this -- and -- and this is

17 13:40:24 not something that I have instructed myself on in

18 13:40:27 preparation for this testimony, but my recollection is

19 13:40:31 that the -- the uploads were coming directly from the

20 13:40:40 creator of the movie, whose name is oddly eluding me

21 13:40:46 right now. Um --

22 13:40:48 Q. Michael Moore?

23 13:40:49 A. Michael Moore. It's that Michael Moore and

24 13:40:51 his direct staff were the ones that were uploading it.

25 13:40:55 Q. Uh-huh.
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2 13:40:56 A. And that's why -- you know, that's why it

3 13:40:58 showed up so early. But yes, I remember that it -- they

4 13:41:03 kept doing it.

5 13:41:04 Q. And do you recall the Weinstein Company

6 13:41:08 complaining about repeated uploads to YouTube?

7 13:41:13 A. I re- -- I recall this e-mail exchange.

8 13:41:19 Q. I have a question about --

9 13:41:21 A. But it -- it does kind of get -- I remember

10 13:41:23 this as being a rather ironic exchange, in that -- that

11 13:41:27 the Weinstein Company provided funding to Michael Moore

12 13:41:34 and his production company to create this movie and then

13 13:41:38 to market it, and this was a sort of left-hand-not-

14 13:41:41 speaking-to-the-right-hand battle that we often ended up

15 13:41:44 in.

16 13:41:45 So this was not just random people uploading

17 13:41:49 this. This was the creator of the film who you would

18 13:41:53 think would be in tighter alignment with his production

19 13:41:56 company.

20 13:41:56 Q. I have a question about the exchange near the

21 13:41:58 top of the first page.

22 13:42:00 A. Uh-huh.

23 13:42:00 Q. Where the e-mail from Lew Rothman to David Eun

24 13:42:06 is saying:

25 13:42:07 "David,



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

141

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 13:42:07 "Do you guys currently use Audible Magic's

3 13:42:09 fingerprinting technology?"

4 13:42:09 And the response from David Eun saying:

5 13:42:11 "Lew,

6 13:42:12 Yes, we are. We've found though that their

7 13:42:14 technology works better for music videos than

8 13:42:17 other types of video content."

9 13:42:20 Is it, in fact, the case that YouTube found

10 13:42:24 Audible Magic to be more effective for music than for

11 13:42:28 other kinds of video content?

12 13:42:30 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

13 13:42:31 THE WITNESS: As we discussed earlier, Audible

14 13:42:33 Magic provides matching based on audio.

15 13:42:40 We're a video service. And so, if you want to

16 13:42:43 match on video, video fingerprinting is a much more

17 13:42:49 powerful technology.

18 13:42:52 So it is true that the Audible Magic solution

19 13:42:57 was helpful but imperfect for our needs, and this is

20 13:43:03 precisely why we have spent many millions of dollars

21 13:43:11 developing a world class video fingerprinting technology

22 13:43:14 to sup- -- to supplement audio fingerprinting.

23 13:43:18 BY MR. PLATZER:

24 13:43:20 Q. But, to repeat my initial question, has

25 13:43:23 YouTube, in fact, found that Audible Magic is less
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2 13:43:26 effective for video content that isn't a music video?

3 13:43:31 MR. WILLEN: Objection, asked and answered.

4 13:43:43 THE WITNESS: I think, you know, as a -- I

5 13:43:48 just appeal to your reason. If you think about the --

6 13:43:54 the -- the sound that is coming from this room, and the

7 13:43:57 sound that comes from a CD playing, the sound that comes

8 13:44:01 from a CD playing is continuous. It's very -- it's

9 13:44:07 sonically rich. It's a -- it's a very full audio signal

10 13:44:12 to work from.

11 13:44:14 So if I were to play for you right now, say a

12 13:44:19 Beatles song and ask you, what is this, you would

13 13:44:22 probably be able to tell me that's a Beatles song.

14 13:44:26 Now, if I were to play for you a snippet of

15 13:44:31 everybody's voice in this room and ask you to identify

16 13:44:34 each person from that snippet of their voice, it would

17 13:44:39 probably be harder for you to get those all right.

18 13:44:42 Q. And I understand the theoretical argument for

19 13:44:45 why it might be less effective that you're articulating

20 13:44:49 right now.

21 13:44:49 The question I'm asking is whether YouTube

22 13:44:52 actually concluded that that was empirically the case,

23 13:44:55 that Audible Magic worked less well for video that

24 13:44:58 wasn't a music video. Not why it might be the case, but

25 13:45:02 whether Google actually concluded that that was the
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2 13:45:05 case.

3 13:45:06 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

4 13:45:14 THE WITNESS: We found that the results that

5 13:45:16 we got in matching videos with a musical soundbed to

6 13:45:24 them was more effective in using Audible Magic

7 13:45:31 technology, and our response to that was to turn around

8 13:45:35 and spend millions and millions of dollars, and spin up

9 13:45:40 a very large global team on building out a more

10 13:45:45 effective response.

11 13:45:45 BY MR. PLATZER:

12 13:45:46 Q. Okay. And you say you found that the results

13 13:45:48 you got in matching videos within Audible Magic showed

14 13:45:52 that videos of music are more effectively matched;

15 13:45:56 right?

16 13:45:57 MR. WILLEN: Objection. Mischaracterizes

17 13:45:58 testimony.

18 13:45:58 THE WITNESS: I don't have figures around

19 13:46:00 that, but that was -- so I wouldn't -- it -- it wasn't

20 13:46:07 an empirical study, but -- so I appealed to reason in my

21 13:46:14 earlier response, and I think it was that same appeal to

22 13:46:19 reason which led that conversation, as opposed to data.

23 13:46:23 BY MR. PLATZER:

24 13:46:24 Q. Okay. So YouTube didn't do a numerical

25 13:46:28 analysis --
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2 13:46:29 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form. Vague as

3 13:46:32 to --

4 13:46:32 BY MR. PLATZER:

5 13:46:33 Q. As --

6 13:46:33 MR. WILLEN: -- "empirical analysis."

7 13:46:36 BY MR. PLATZER:

8 13:46:37 Q. -- as to whether Audible Magic was less

9 13:46:39 effective for musical content than for video content.

10 13:46:46 MR. WILLEN: Sorry. Didn't mean to interrupt

11 13:46:48 your question. I restate my objection that it's vague.

12 13:46:55 THE WITNESS: Simply put, if you want to match

13 13:46:57 video, the strongest way to do so is to actually analyze

14 13:47:04 the images.

15 13:47:06 BY MR. PLATZER:

16 13:47:07 Q. So is that a no?

17 13:47:08 MR. WILLEN: Objection. You don't have to

18 13:47:10 answer that.

19 13:47:11 THE WITNESS: It's -- it's -- both as a matter

20 13:47:17 of logic and as a -- in terms of the actual results that

21 13:47:23 we've had afterwards, the best way to identify a video

22 13:47:27 asset is to analyze the pictures.

23 13:47:30 BY MR. PLATZER:

24 13:47:32 Q. But did YouTube ever analyze actual results in

25 13:47:36 order to reach that conclusion?
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2 14:42:45 the time period immediately after it launched?

3 14:42:56 A. I -- I'd -- if recollection serves, during the

4 14:43:01 first few weeks there -- we were careful about how many

5 14:43:08 new partners we took on, because we needed to manage our

6 14:43:11 expectations.

7 14:43:15 That period was a very short period. And once

8 14:43:19 we got comfort that the system could handle load, we

9 14:43:24 quickly moved past those restrictions.

10 14:43:28 Q. When did YouTube move past those restrictions?

11 14:43:34 A. I would say it was within a month.

12 14:43:41 Q. So November of 2007?

13 14:43:42 A. Yes.

14 14:43:43 Q. Okay.

15 14:43:56 A. We wouldn't be doing anybody any favors -- if

16 14:43:59 I can offer just a little bit more, we wouldn't be doing

17 14:44:02 anybody any favors if we offered a system, got everybody

18 14:44:06 to do a lot of work, and then the system fell over and

19 14:44:09 didn't work at all.

20 14:44:10 So we -- we did have to balance our desire to

21 14:44:14 do everything immediately with the desire to provide a

22 14:44:20 reliable service to people that were putting effort in

23 14:44:25 from the other side. We didn't want to waste people's

24 14:44:30 time.

25 14:44:31 Q. I know we discussed earlier the circumstances
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2 14:44:33 under which YouTube would use the YT -- the YTU

3 14:44:39 partition of the Audible Magic database with respect to

4 14:44:42 videos that had been taken down.

5 14:44:44 A. Uh-huh.

6 14:44:45 Q. I'd like to ask a similar set of questions

7 14:44:48 about Google's own fingerprinting technology. Since

8 14:44:52 implementation of Google's own fingerprinting

9 14:44:56 technology --

10 14:44:57 A. Uh-huh.

11 14:44:58 Q. -- are there any circumstances in which a

12 14:45:01 video that is removed pursuant to a takedown notice is

13 14:45:08 fingerprinted and blocked going forward?

14 14:45:13 A. As previously discussed, we switched over,

15 14:45:20 once we had the Google technology in place, when we --

16 14:45:26 we -- we switched over the back end so that when a user

17 14:45:32 of the CMS system flagged a video and said, please

18 14:45:41 create a reference off of this, we did so using the

19 14:45:44 Google technology. So really all my former testimony

20 14:45:47 around that issue is -- would -- would remain the same

21 14:45:53 regardless of which technical back end we were using.

22 14:45:58 Q. YouTube didn't stop doing that at some point

23 14:46:00 in time?

24 14:46:02 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

25 14:46:04 THE WITNESS: That is a service that we still
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2 14:46:06 offer today.

3 14:46:13 BY MR. PLATZER:

4 14:46:13 Q. At what point did the back end switch over?

5 14:46:18 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

6 14:46:22 THE WITNESS: I don't -- I don't recall the

7 14:46:25 precise date at which the back end switched over.

8 14:46:37 THE REPORTER: This is number 13.

9 14:46:39 (King Deposition Exhibit Number 13 was marked

10 14:46:39 for identification.)

11 14:46:39 BY MR. PLATZER:

12 14:46:40 Q. Do you remember what year the back end

13 14:46:42 switched over?

14 14:46:43 A. I would -- I would -- I would say 2008.

15 14:46:53 Q. The court reporter has handed you what's been

16 14:46:56 marked as King 13. It's a document bearing the title

17 14:46:59 "Video Fingerprinting Requirements." The Bates number

18 14:47:03 is Google 2832600 through 2832616.

19 14:47:13 A. Okay. It's a very long document.

20 14:47:16 Q. Do you recognize this as a wiki from Google's

21 14:47:20 system?

22 14:47:23 A. I believe it was a Google doc, but --

23 14:47:28 Q. Oh, a way -- the check box?

24 14:47:31 A. Uh-huh.

25 14:47:32 Q. I have a question here for you. The fourth



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

177

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 14:47:35 grouping of lines from the bottom on the very first

3 14:47:39 page, it says:

4 14:47:40 "We will" -- and then in asterisks "*not*

5 14:47:42 generate ref fingerprint upon claiming by

6 14:47:45 partner of UGC video through desc search," and

7 14:47:49 then in paren, "(Dave: Confirm this

8 14:47:52 statement.)"

9 14:47:53 Following that there's the initials "DK." It says:

10 14:47:56 "This is correct."

11 14:47:57 A. Uh-huh.

12 14:47:57 Q. And then:

13 14:47:57 "The reason we will no longer allow this

14 14:48:00 feature is because we are going to open up CYC

15 14:48:03 to non-partners who we do not think we can

16 14:48:03 trust to review the content carefully enough.

17 14:48:05 CYC should have the same level of

18 14:48:05 functionality for partners and non-partners."

19 14:48:09 A. Uh-huh.

20 14:48:11 Q. Does this refresh your recollection as to

21 14:48:14 whether Google today still generates reference

22 14:48:17 fingerprints from videos that are removed pursuant to a

23 14:48:20 takedown notice?

24 14:48:22 MR. WILLEN: Objection to the form.

25 14:48:23 Mischaracterizes prior testimony.
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2 14:53:44 Q. Can you name them?

3 14:53:51 A. All those were under NDA. Did that not apply

4 14:53:55 in this case?

5 14:53:56 MR. WILLEN: If you know the answer to the

6 14:53:57 question you can answer it. Obviously this whole

7 14:54:00 transcript will be designated as highly confidential,

8 14:54:02 and certain portions of it will probably be designated

9 14:54:06 as restricted.

10 14:54:08 THE WITNESS: Okay. Well, one example would

11 14:54:10 be

12 14:54:12 BY MR. PLATZER:

13 14:54:12 Q. Any other examples?

14 14:54:14 A. That's one that comes to mind, but there

15 14:54:16 are -- there are certainly, I -- like I said, I didn't

16 14:54:19 review the names. I'm just recalling one from -- you

17 14:54:25 know, from three years ago. I --

18 14:54:28 Q. Have --

19 14:54:28 A. At this point we have 1200 partners on the

20 14:54:30 system. It gets muddled in my mind exactly who did what

21 14:54:35 when.

22 14:54:35 Q. I'm asking for your personal recollection as

23 14:54:37 David King.

24 14:54:38 A. As personal recollection, I can -- the one

25 14:54:39 that I can remember categorically as using Audible Magic
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2 14:54:43 for audio fingerprinting in a block only capacity, one

3 14:54:50 example would be

4 14:54:52 Q. And Clarify. What is that?

5 14:54:56 A. . You can imagine that I

6 14:54:59 took their demands quite seriously.

7 14:55:10 MR. PLATZER: I think we're going to take a

8 14:55:11 very quick break and see if we have anything further.

9 14:55:15 MR. WILLEN: Okay.

10 14:55:16 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now going off the

11 14:55:17 record. The time is 2:55 p.m.

12 15:03:47 (Short break.)

13 15:03:49 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now on the record.

14 15:03:50 The time is 3:04 p.m.

15 15:03:53 BY MR. PLATZER:

16 15:03:55 Q. Sir, a quick authentication question about the

17 15:03:58 last document we were looking at, King Exhibit 13. Have

18 15:04:03 you seen this document before?

19 15:04:06 A. Yes, I have seen this document before.

20 15:04:10 I also wanted to offer just -- and -- and a

21 15:04:16 few more names of block only partners if you -- if you

22 15:04:18 would -- if you would like me to.

23 15:04:20 Q. Please.

24 15:04:21 A. So others we -- we scanned some of the -- some

25 15:04:26 of the names of -- of users of the system, and so others
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2 15:04:30 that I know were block only included companies like ,

3 15:04:33

4 15:04:41

5 15:04:45 . So those are a few other names. They're

6 15:04:48 -- that is, once again, not an exhaustive list.

7 15:04:53 I'd also like to add that for -- there were

8 15:04:55 many partners of the system that you might not consider

9 15:04:58 block only partners but that, in fact, used the

10 15:05:04 fingerprinting system only for blocking.

11 15:05:07 So they used YouTube as a distribution

12 15:05:11 mechanism for their content, but when it came to their

13 15:05:16 handling of user files or matches in the user-generated

14 15:05:22 side of the house, they -- their decision was always to

15 15:05:28 block. So these lines aren't quite as crisp as -- as,

16 15:05:32 you know, as one might suppose.

17 15:05:37 Q. And those block only partners that you

18 15:05:40 testified to, did they block using the YTB partition?

19 15:05:51 A. They blocked using the YTB and the YTU

20 15:05:56 partitions.

21 15:05:58 Q. And were these partners who used the Audible

22 15:06:01 Magic technology in 2007?

23 15:06:04 A. Yes. I thought your question was bounded to

24 15:06:11 early 2007.

25 15:06:12 Q. Yes.
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2 15:06:13 A. I was speaking specifically to early 2007.

3 15:06:16 Q. It was. Thank you for that clarification.

4 15:06:32 Direct your attention back to King Exhibit 13.

5 15:06:34 You mentioned that you did recognize the document. Can

6 15:06:37 you please explain where you recognize it from?

7 15:06:47 A. It -- it, you know, I don't want to read the

8 15:06:51 whole thing, because that will take too long. Right?

9 15:06:55 Can we agree on that?

10 15:06:56 Q. Yes.

11 15:06:57 A. So just on the surface of it, this would be

12 15:07:01 sort of our ongoing dialogue between the various

13 15:07:08 engineers involved in the system and -- and product

14 15:07:11 people involved in the system, in working through the

15 15:07:13 details of how we should implement the system.

16 15:07:18 Q. And --

17 15:07:18 A. "The system" being video fingerprinting

18 15:07:21 specifically.

19 15:07:22 Q. Do you recall the time frame of this document?

20 15:07:28 A. So I can -- you know, it has one date that

21 15:07:32 appears right here on this front page, which is

22 15:07:35 June 13th. And so, you know, going back to this

23 15:07:40 timeline, like another consistency you'll see between

24 15:07:43 this and this, is on June 13th we did video

25 15:07:47 fingerprinting trials with about ten partners. And in
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2 15:07:50 here you'll see, you know, beta testing video, but we

3 15:07:54 were already, in June of '07, doing a -- a form of beta

4 15:08:02 testing with -- with trial partners.

5 15:08:05 Q. Okay. You believe that this document is from

6 15:08:07 around the summer of 2007?

7 15:08:09 A. Yes.

8 15:08:10 Q. Okay. And just a follow-up question on the

9 15:08:20 additional block only partners that you just listed.

10 15:08:25 Were the ones that you mentioned block only partners who

11 15:08:30 used YouTube for distribution of their own content?

12 15:08:35 A. No. So the -- I was working under what I

13 15:08:40 understood to be your definition of a block only

14 15:08:44 partner. A -- a company which did no licensing of

15 15:08:50 content to YouTube that was purely interested in

16 15:08:53 availing themselves of copyright services and blocking

17 15:08:59 content.

18 15:09:00 Q. Okay. And are -- are any of those companies

19 15:09:05 U.S. companies?

20 15:09:07 MR. WILLEN: Objection to form. Calls for --

21 15:09:12 THE WITNESS: So if we --

22 15:09:12 MR. WILLEN: Hold on.

23 15:09:14 THE REPORTER: "Calls for" --

24 15:09:16 MR. WILLEN: Calls for a legal conclusion.

25 15:09:17 It's -- it's certainly outside the scope of the 30(b)6



DAVID KING - HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

450 Seventh Avenue - Ste 2803, New York, NY 10123 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

187

1 DAVID KING SAN FRANCISCO, CA JANUARY 13, 2010

2 15:09:21 topic.

3 15:09:24 THE WITNESS: Should I -- should I answer?

4 15:09:30 MR. PLATZER: This seems to fall quite

5 15:09:33 squarely within the categories of companies who used

6 15:09:35 Audible Magic for blocking.

7 15:09:37 MR. WILLEN: You're asking him whether

8 15:09:38 specific companies are or are not U.S. companies. I

9 15:09:41 don't know how that's within the scope of the topic. If

10 15:09:44 he has a personal understanding about where these

11 15:09:46 companies do business, he can answer the question.

12 15:09:48 THE WITNESS: My personal understanding,

13 15:09:49 without actually researching the question, if we just

14 15:09:56 kind of take them one by one, is that

15 15:10:02

16 15:10:08

17 15:10:12

18 15:10:16

19 15:10:19

20 15:10:25

21 15:10:28

22 15:10:32

23 15:10:38

24 15:10:42

25
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2 09:21:06 documents? Where are your documents, sir?

3 09:21:09 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

4 09:21:16 THE WITNESS: I produced the documents that

5 09:21:17 were required by the protective order.

6 09:21:19 MR. BASKIN: Q. And that yielded 19

7 09:21:21 documents between June 2006 and February 2007?

8 09:21:25 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

9 09:21:26 mischaracterizes the document.

10 09:21:28 THE WITNESS: Ask your question.

11 09:21:32 MR. BASKIN: Q. That is the question.

12 09:21:34 A Yes.

13 09:21:34 Q Okay. And then there are some months that

14 09:21:49 you produced, at least five months by my count, which

15 09:21:55 there were no custodial documents produced by you.

16 09:21:58 I assume you were working during those

17 09:22:01 months; were you not?

18 09:22:01 A Absolutely.

19 09:22:02 Q And is it plausible, knowing your practice,

20 09:22:06 that you generated no documents during the course of

21 09:22:11 those five months that were relevant to this

22 09:22:13 litigation?

23 09:22:14 MR. MANCINI: Objection; calls for a legal

24 09:22:16 conclusion; calls for speculation.

25 09:22:17 THE WITNESS: Again, I'd be speculating as to
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2 09:22:22 the causes, but the numbers are the numbers.

3 09:22:24 MR. BASKIN: Q. So as I understand it, it is

4 09:22:36 fair for the jury in this case to conclude that you

5 09:22:41 had nine custodial documents over the nine-month

6 09:22:44 period from June 2006 to February 2007?

7 09:22:46 MR. MANCINI: Objection; mischaracterization

8 09:22:49 of a document which I've already objected to, and

9 09:22:51 objection to the reference to somehow a jury being

10 09:22:54 present in this room.

11 09:22:56 THE WITNESS: I can't speak for a jury.

12 09:22:58 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, by the way, under the

13 09:23:06 Google system, as you know it, are all your e-mails

14 09:23:10 preserved?

15 09:23:11 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

16 09:23:12 THE WITNESS: You need to ask a more precise

17 09:23:15 question.

18 09:23:16 MR. BASKIN: Q. I know you may be testing my

19 09:23:19 limits here.

20 09:23:21 A I'm an engineer. I'd like to give you an

21 09:23:22 exactly truthful answer.

22 09:23:25 Q Okay. Assuming that you had to go back to

23 09:23:30 look to see if there were more than 19 custodial

24 09:23:33 documents over the course of nine months, including

25 09:23:38 your e-mails, would it be possible for Google to find
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2 09:23:42 those documents?

3 09:23:43 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

4 09:23:44 THE WITNESS: Over what period?

5 09:23:45 MR. BASKIN: Q. June 2006, let's -- to

6 09:23:50 February 2007.

7 09:23:50 A No.

8 09:23:50 MR. MANCINI: Same objection.

9 09:23:52 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.

10 09:23:53 The answer is no.

11 09:23:54 MR. BASKIN: Q. And from February 2007 until

12 09:24:03 April 2008, do you -- what about the e-mails

13 09:24:07 associated with that time period? Could Google

14 09:24:10 retrieve those e-mails and locate them if asked?

15 09:24:14 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

16 09:24:15 Did you mean April 2008?

17 09:24:17 MR. BASKIN: Huh? Well, let me phrase it

18 09:24:20 differently. Let me phrase it differently.

19 09:24:22 Q During the entire period from 2001 until well

20 09:24:29 under 2008, by our count you produced 791 custodial

21 09:24:33 documents. That covers about seven or eight years.

22 09:24:39 If Google had to go back and retrieve your

23 09:24:44 e-mails for, let's say, the period 2005, are those

24 09:24:49 retrievable, as far as you know, sir?

25 09:24:51 MR. MANCINI: Same objection to the use of
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2 09:29:58 A Yeah.

3 09:29:58 Q -- I thought you said that for 30 years it's

4 09:30:01 been your practice not to preserve or to delete

5 09:30:05 e-mails?

6 09:30:05 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; objection to

7 09:30:07 the characterization of the testimony.

8 09:30:09 MR. BASKIN: Q. Is that accurate?

9 09:30:10 A Again, I'll answer the question previously

10 09:30:14 asked, which was it has been my practice to not keep

11 09:30:16 my e-mails.

12 09:30:17 Q And is this on some sort of automatic system

13 09:30:20 where they are deleted in the ordinary course over

14 09:30:24 some ordinary period of time?

15 09:30:25 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; objection,

16 09:30:26 lacks foundation.

17 09:30:27 THE WITNESS: Depending on the e-mail system

18 09:30:29 and the company and so forth, the answer would vary.

19 09:30:32 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

20 09:30:32 Q Well, let's take Google in 2005. What was

21 09:30:41 your practice then as to the length of time in which

22 09:30:44 you preserved your e-mails before they were deleted?

23 09:30:47 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

24 09:30:48 THE WITNESS: It was my practice to delete or

25 09:30:52 otherwise cause the e-mails that I had read to go away
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2 09:30:56 as quickly as possible.

3 09:30:57 MR. BASKIN: Q. Within days?

4 09:31:01 A Yes.

5 09:31:01 Q And I assume that practice carried over to

6 09:31:11 2006 and 2007 and 2008?

7 09:31:13 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

8 09:31:14 THE WITNESS: In -- again, without the

9 09:31:21 specific dates, in principle, yes.

10 09:31:24 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, when the lawsuit was

11 09:31:28 filed in February 2007, did anyone instruct you that

12 09:31:36 you should preserve your e-mails relevant to the

13 09:31:41 litigation?

14 09:31:44 Excuse me. As of -- excuse me. As of the

15 09:31:47 filing of this complaint, which is March of 2007, did

16 09:31:50 anyone instruct you to preserve your e-mails that

17 09:31:53 might be relevant to this litigation?

18 09:31:54 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the extent it

19 09:31:55 calls for a privileged communication.

20 09:31:58 THE WITNESS: I want to be careful not to

21 09:32:04 discuss a legal conversation that I had.

22 09:32:08 You used a precise month. A -- a clear -- a

23 09:32:14 clear and precise answer would be that I did change my

24 09:32:16 practice after this lawsuit was filed and I was

25 09:32:20 notified.
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2 09:32:21 MR. BASKIN: Q. But if I'm reading our chart

3 09:32:23 right, for example, in the following month, April, you

4 09:32:26 had zero custodial documents you've produced.

5 09:32:28 Is that -- were you preserving e-mails during

6 09:32:33 the month of April?

7 09:32:35 MR. MANCINI: Objection; same objection to

8 09:32:36 the use of this document.

9 09:32:37 THE WITNESS: Again, ignoring the document,

10 09:32:39 which I have not seen and have no comment on, after I

11 09:32:44 was notified of the protective order, I changed my

12 09:32:46 policy.

13 09:32:46 MR. BASKIN: Q. And were you notified -- do

14 09:32:51 you recall if you were notified of the protective

15 09:32:53 order prior to, let's say, June 2007?

16 09:32:59 A I don't remember --

17 09:32:59 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

18 09:33:00 THE WITNESS: Sorry.

19 09:33:01 I don't remember the precise date.

20 09:33:02 MR. BASKIN: Now -- excuse me. I'm getting a

21 09:33:15 note. Good question.

22 09:33:21 Q How did you effectuate the change of this

23 09:33:23 policy? What did you do?

24 09:33:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

25 09:33:26 THE WITNESS: Okay. I understood the
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2 09:33:31 protective order, and if there were any e-mails that

3 09:33:36 were covered by the protective order, I did not delete

4 09:33:39 or otherwise cause them to go away.

5 09:33:43 MR. BASKIN: Q. So you made the judgment

6 09:33:45 yourself whether it was covered by the protective

7 09:33:48 order?

8 09:33:48 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

9 09:33:49 mischaracterizes testimony.

10 09:33:50 THE WITNESS: I would need to discuss a legal

11 09:33:52 conversation to answer your question.

12 09:34:02 It may be helpful to say that we ultimately

13 09:34:06 made the system more automatic to make this

14 09:34:09 operation -- we operationalized it. That may help

15 09:34:15 your -- the confusion over the numbers that you have

16 09:34:17 in the chart.

17 09:34:21 MR. BASKIN: Excuse me one second.

18 09:34:43 Q Now, when you made the -- the assessment what

19 09:35:08 was, in your mind, relevant to the protective order

20 09:35:10 and the -- and the lawsuit, did you actually look at

21 09:35:15 the document request in this case?

22 09:35:16 MR. MANCINI: Objection; mischaracterizes

23 09:35:18 testimony.

24 09:35:19 THE WITNESS: Again, in order to answer your

25 09:35:23 question, I would have to discuss a conversation we
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2 09:35:24 had with our lawyers.

3 09:35:26 MR. BASKIN: Q. But all I asked was, did

4 09:35:28 you -- and with your own eyes, did you actually see

5 09:35:30 the document request in this case?

6 09:35:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

7 09:35:35 THE WITNESS: I believe I did.

8 09:35:36 MR. BASKIN: Q. And as you sit here today,

9 09:35:45 sir, does it seem realistic to you that the number of

10 09:35:59 custodial documents produced -- rep -- stated -- set

11 09:36:05 forth on Schmidt Exhibit 1 is the complete set of

12 09:36:09 documents that corresponds to the document request?

13 09:36:12 MR. MANCINI: Again, objection to the use of

14 09:36:14 this document and objection because it lacks

15 09:36:16 foundation.

16 09:36:16 THE WITNESS: The answer is yes.

17 09:36:18 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

18 09:36:21 Q Now -- now, the board -- the Google board

19 09:36:40 authorized the acquisition of YouTube in -- in and

20 09:36:43 around October 2006; is that right, sir?

21 09:36:46 A That's roughly correct, yes.

22 09:36:47 Q And am I right that basically the acquisition

23 09:36:49 closed in and around November?

24 09:36:52 A That's roughly correct, yes.

25 09:36:53 Q Now, prior to October 2006, did you know
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2 10:06:27 of any errors in it.

3 10:06:28 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, if you'd turn to the

4 10:06:45 page 12 of the board book that's Bated stamped -- it

5 10:06:59 has Bates stamp numbers 3573. Could you take a look

6 10:07:02 at that for a second, sir?

7 10:07:03 A I do see it, yes.

8 10:07:05 Q And just take a look at that for a second,

9 10:07:11 and just tell me whether you can -- whether you read

10 10:07:13 this page as containing a discounted cash flow

11 10:07:18 analysis by CSFB with respect to YouTube.

12 10:07:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

13 10:07:25 characterization of the document; the document speaks

14 10:07:27 for itself; and objection to form.

15 10:07:31 THE WITNESS: I don't recall this page, so I

16 10:07:34 would be speculating as to what it really is trying to

17 10:07:38 convey. I do see that it's their calculation about

18 10:07:43 revenue and YouTube and discounted cash flows under

19 10:07:46 some assumption.

20 10:07:46 MR. BASKIN: Q. And you see, I take it, on

21 10:07:48 the face of page 12 of Schmidt Exhibit 2 that their

22 10:07:53 base case valuation for YouTube was

23 10:07:59 Do you see that?

24 10:08:01 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

25 10:08:01 characterization of the document.
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2 10:08:03 THE WITNESS: I -- I read that as I see the

3 10:08:08 document, yes.

4 10:08:09 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, in the course of the

5 10:08:10 discussions with the board on October 9th, 2006, was

6 10:08:19 there a discussion of valuation of YouTube?

7 10:08:23 A Yes.

8 10:08:23 Q And do you recall whether there was an

9 10:08:28 alternative valuation provided by management, for

10 10:08:33 instance, CSFB's --

11 10:08:35 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

12 10:08:36 MR. BASKIN: Q. -- determination of

13 10:08:39 valuation?

14 10:08:39 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

15 10:08:40 MR. BASKIN: That was a lousy question, so

16 10:08:41 let me rephrase it.

17 10:08:42 Q Do you recall whether management had a

18 10:08:43 valuation independent of what CSFB was communicating

19 10:08:50 to the board?

20 10:08:50 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

21 10:08:51 THE WITNESS: Yes.

22 10:08:51 MR. BASKIN: Q. And what was management's

23 10:08:53 valuation?

24 10:08:54 A

25 10:08:57 Q And how was that communicated to the board,
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2 10:08:59 sir?

3 10:08:59 A I told them.

4 10:09:00 Q So why don't you tell us what you remember

5 10:09:02 telling the board in connection with the valuation?

6 10:09:04 A I believed YouTube was worth somewhere around

7 10:09:08 .

8 10:09:09 Q And you communicated that to the Board of

9 10:09:11 Directors of YouTube --

10 10:09:11 A I did.

11 10:09:13 Q -- of Google?

12 10:09:14 A I did.

13 10:09:14 Q And was that -- what methodology did you use

14 10:09:17 to come up with that number?

15 10:09:20 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

16 10:09:21 THE WITNESS: My judgment.

17 10:09:22 MR. BASKIN: Q. Was it based on cash flow

18 10:09:24 analysis? Comparable companies? What -- what were

19 10:09:26 you using as the basis for your judgment?

20 10:09:29 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

21 10:09:30 THE WITNESS: It's just my judgment. I've

22 10:09:34 done this a long time.

23 10:09:35 MR. BASKIN: Q. So you orally communicated

24 10:09:38 to your board, during the course of the board meeting,

25 10:09:44 that you thought a more correct valuation for YouTube
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2 10:09:50 was ; is that what you said, sir?

3 10:09:57 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

4 10:09:57 characterization of the testimony.

5 10:09:58 THE WITNESS: Again, to help you along, I

6 10:10:02 believed that they were worth

7 10:10:06 MR. BASKIN: Q. And am I correct that you

8 10:10:07 were asking your board to approve an acquisition price

9 10:10:11 of $1.65 billion; correct?

10 10:10:15 A I did.

11 10:10:15 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

12 10:10:16 MR. BASKIN: Q. And although I'm not very

13 10:10:17 good at math, but I think that would be

14 10:10:20 than you thought the company was,

15 10:10:23 in fact, worth?

16 10:10:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and

17 10:10:25 objection to the mischaracterization of the testimony.

18 10:10:28 THE WITNESS: That is correct.

19 10:10:28 MR. BASKIN: Q. And you communicated that to

20 10:10:30 your board in and around October 9th, 2006?

21 10:10:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

22 10:10:33 THE WITNESS: I did.

23 10:10:34 MR. BASKIN: Q. And was a discussion among

24 10:10:36 the board to the effect that the CEO's valuation was a

25 10:10:42 than the proposed purchase price?
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2 10:10:45 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

3 10:10:46 THE WITNESS: I don't remember the exact

4 10:10:48 board conversation, but I explained the -- I explained

5 10:10:52 my reasoning to them, absolutely.

6 10:10:54 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

7 10:10:54 Q And as best you can recall, can you tell us

8 10:10:57 what reasoning you explained?

9 10:10:58 A Sure.

10 10:10:59 This is a company with very little revenue,

11 10:11:06 growing quickly with user adoption, growing much

12 10:11:11 faster than Google Video, which was the product that

13 10:11:15 Google had. And they had indicated to us that they

14 10:11:20 would be sold, and we believed that there would be a

15 10:11:25 competing offer that, because of who Google was, pay

16 10:11:29 much more than they were worth.

17 10:11:33 In the deal dynamics, the price, remember, is

18 10:11:38 not set by my judgment or by a financial model or a

19 10:11:41 discounted cash flow. It's set by what people are

20 10:11:45 willing to pay.

21 10:11:46 And we ultimately concluded that 1.65 billion

22 10:11:50 included a premium for moving quickly and making sure

23 10:11:55 that we could participate in the user success of

24 10:11:59 YouTube.

25 10:12:01 Q And that was the analysis that you
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2 10:12:04 communicated to your board in and around October 9,

3 10:12:07 2006?

4 10:12:07 A That is correct.

5 10:12:08 Q So in effect you were, in your mind, paying a

6 10:12:12 to keep YouTube out of the hand

7 10:12:17 of ; is that --

8 10:12:18 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

9 10:12:19 characterization of the testimony; lacks foundation.

10 10:12:21 THE WITNESS: Again, I didn't say keep it out

11 10:12:23 of . What I said was that my -- you asked me a

12 10:12:28 question, my value, how did I value it, and I gave you

13 10:12:31 my answer.

14 10:12:32 But the way to think about it is sometimes

15 10:12:36 things are not -- what my value is, maybe their -- the

16 10:12:38 market prices are different from what I value it at.

17 10:12:41 MR. BASKIN: Q. And so what I was asking was

18 10:12:44 whether, in your mind, were you paying a

19 10:12:49 to YouTube's founders as a way

20 10:12:55 of keeping YouTube out of the hands of ?

21 10:12:57 MR. MANCINI: Same objections. Objection;

22 10:12:59 lacks foundation.

23 10:13:00 THE WITNESS: No.

24 10:13:02 MR. BASKIN: Q. Meaning, not , or

25 10:13:05 was not exclusively the other acquirer you were
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2 10:13:09 worried about?

3 10:13:09 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and lacks

4 10:13:11 foundation.

5 10:13:11 THE WITNESS: You inserted into the

6 10:13:13 conversation. I have not said

7 10:13:18 It was clear to me that it was important that

8 10:13:22 the phenomena of user-contributed video be a part of

9 10:13:27 the Google portfolio, and that we should be willing to

10 10:13:32 pay market value as defined by market and not

11 10:13:34 necessarily by me.

12 10:13:36 And through the negotiation process we came

13 10:13:38 to the conclusion of 1.65 billion, and I reluctantly

14 10:13:43 told the board that this was a good deal for Google.

15 10:13:49 MR. BASKIN: Q. And by the way, as part of

16 10:13:58 your thinking, were the YouTube founders, in fact,

17 10:14:13 communicating to the Google team that was a

18 10:14:19 competing bidder for YouTube?

19 10:14:21 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

20 10:14:23 objection to form.

21 10:14:24 THE WITNESS: I don't recall the -- the

22 10:14:29 specific buildup to the 1.65 billion. But in a

23 10:14:34 negotiation, you are worried about the other potential

24 10:14:40 buyers, and we were certainly worried about our

25 10:14:43 competitors, and -- and it's a judgment call how much
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2 10:14:52 are you willing to pay for a unique asset.

3 10:14:57 I can't help answer it more than to say that.

4 10:15:01 I don't recall the specific of here, this might

5 10:15:04 happen, that might happen. We certainly discussed all

6 10:15:07 of those things.

7 10:15:08 MR. BASKIN: Q. You don't recall discussing

8 10:15:09 as a possible acquirer?

9 10:15:11 MR. MANCINI: Objection; asked and answered.

10 10:15:13 THE WITNESS: Again, I'm sure we talked about

11 10:15:18 competitors possibly -- possibly buying them. I don't

12 10:15:22 recall the specifics of companies or price.

13 10:15:29 MR. BASKIN: Q. And did you ever come to

14 10:15:31 learn that, in negotiations with your team, that

15 10:15:36 Mr. Hurley had inflated 's bid for YouTube by

16 10:15:42 several hundred million dollars?

17 10:15:43 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

18 10:15:45 objection to form.

19 10:15:46 THE WITNESS: No.

20 10:15:47 MR. BASKIN: Q. And as you sit here today,

21 10:15:50 have you ever heard that, sir?

22 10:15:51 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

23 10:15:53 THE WITNESS: No.

24 10:15:54 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, when you recommended to

25 10:16:10 the board that it pay $1.65 billion for a company that
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2 10:16:21 you yourself believed was worth around

3 10:16:24 , did you do so on the assumption that in

4 10:16:29 the future you would, in fact, realize profit from the

5 10:16:36 acquisition?

6 10:16:37 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation and

7 10:16:39 mischaracterizes testimony.

8 10:16:40

9 10:16:44

10 10:16:48

11 10:16:56 MR. BASKIN: Q. So, for example, if you look

12 10:16:58 back at Schmidt 2, and in particular page eight

13 10:17:17 thereof, which is the Bates stamp 3569, does this page

14 10:17:40 set forth the rationale for Google's purchase of

15 10:17:45 YouTube in and around October 9th, 2006?

16 10:17:47 MR. MANCINI: So objection. And just to be

17 10:17:49 clear, the document speaks for itself. The document

18 10:17:52 is a Credit Suisse document.

19 10:17:54 THE WITNESS: The answer to your question is

20 10:17:55 no.

21 10:17:57 MR. BASKIN: Q. And did you tell your board

22 10:17:58 that you disagreed with the position of the investment

23 10:18:01 banker?

24 10:18:01 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

25 10:18:03 and objection to form.
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2 10:25:29 valuation -- strike that.

3 10:25:32 Apart from your -- strike that.

4 10:25:34 Apart from the million figure that

5 10:25:40 you communicated to your board, was the only other

6 10:25:42 acquisition valuation put before them CSFB's?

7 10:25:48 MR. MANCINI: Objection; mischaracterizes the

8 10:25:50 testimony; and objection to form.

9 10:25:51 THE WITNESS: There were many numbers given

10 10:25:53 to the board that included my initial view, which I

11 10:26:01 reported to you, this CSFB number, and also the board

12 10:26:05 was told about various other potential values.

13 10:26:11 MR. BASKIN: Q. And who told that to the

14 10:26:12 board, sir?

15 10:26:14 A It would have been the deal team, which would

16 10:26:16 be David Drummond.

17 10:26:17 Q And what potential valuations do you recall

18 10:26:20 Mr. Drummond communicating to the board?

19 10:26:21 A I don't recall.

20 10:26:21 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

21 10:26:22 THE WITNESS: I don't recall the specific

22 10:26:23 numbers.

23 10:26:23 But as you previously identified, the CSFB

24 10:26:26 people had a number that was or something

25 10:26:29 like that. So there were many numbers presented.
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2 10:26:34 MR. BASKIN: Q. And do you recall whether

3 10:26:36 Mr. Drummond's various numbers were reduced to writing

4 10:26:42 for the board or were they only communicated orally?

5 10:26:44 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; objection to

6 10:26:46 the characterization of the testimony.

7 10:26:46 THE WITNESS: I have no recollection of how

8 10:26:48 they were communicated, but certainly verbally at a

9 10:26:53 minimum.

10 10:26:54 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, you are aware, I

11 10:26:56 assume, that the acquisition agreement contains an

12 10:27:03 indemnification provision relating to copyright

13 10:27:06 lawsuits?

14 10:27:06 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

15 10:27:08 THE WITNESS: I am aware of what I'm going to

16 10:27:14 call a holdback. I don't know the details of exactly

17 10:27:19 the terms of the holdback, but it is my understanding

18 10:27:22 that it includes areas of copyright.

19 10:27:25 MR. BASKIN: Q. And was that discussed by

20 10:27:29 the board in and around October 9, 2006?

21 10:27:32 A Yes.

22 10:27:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

23 10:27:33 THE WITNESS: Yes.

24 10:27:33 MR. BASKIN: Q. And do you remember that

25 10:27:34 discussion, sir?
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2 10:27:35 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

3 10:27:36 THE WITNESS: No.

4 10:27:39 MR. BASKIN: Q. Was it a factor in your

5 10:27:45 mind, in recommending the transaction, that there was

6 10:27:47 a holdback provision to protect Google in the event of

7 10:27:52 copyright infringement lawsuits?

8 10:27:53 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and

9 10:27:54 objection to the extent it seeks communications from

10 10:27:58 counsel, to which I instruct the witness not to

11 10:28:00 answer.

12 10:28:00 THE WITNESS: It is common for us to have a

13 10:28:02 holdback, and this holdback was -- sorry. Let me say

14 10:28:10 it more concretely.

15 10:28:11 It is -- when we do -- we do loss of

16 10:28:15 acquisitions, it is common to have a holdback for

17 10:28:17 legal issues, surprises and what have you.

18 10:28:23 My judgment was this holdback was sort of in

19 10:28:26 the ballpark, and that's the level of conversation

20 10:28:28 that I recall.

21 10:28:29 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, give me one second,

22 10:28:50 sir. I want to collect my thoughts, because we may be

23 10:28:52 able to jump ahead a little bit.

24 10:28:55 A Sure.

25 10:29:02 THE WITNESS: May I give this back to you?
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2 10:29:04 MR. MANCINI: Yes.

3 10:29:34 MR. BASKIN: Q. Sir, if I wanted to --

4 10:29:38 strike that.

5 10:29:39 Is -- is -- are you aware of any e-mail or

6 10:29:46 memorandum that set forth your position that YouTube

7 10:29:57 was worth and not $1.65 billion?

8 10:30:03 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; objection,

9 10:30:05 lacks foundation.

10 10:30:07 THE WITNESS: I'm not -- there may be --

11 10:30:10 there may be one. The reason I remember the

12 10:30:17 is that in our first conversations about the value,

13 10:30:22 that was sort of where my judgment came to. So I may

14 10:30:26 have written that in an e-mail.

15 10:30:27 MR. BASKIN: Q. And would that be one of the

16 10:30:29 e-mails that were not preserved in and around

17 10:30:34 October/November 2006?

18 10:30:34 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

19 10:30:39 THE WITNESS: Again, be -- because such an

20 10:30:42 e-mail would have gone to somebody who did preserve

21 10:30:45 all their e-mails for 30 years, it -- if there were

22 10:30:48 such an e-mail, it would have shown up.

23 10:30:50 MR. BASKIN: Q. And have you seen that

24 10:30:52 e-mail with your own eyes?

25 10:30:54 MR. MANCINI: Objection; calls for
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2 10:39:17 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

3 10:39:19 THE WITNESS: Again, I recall complaints

4 10:39:27 about YouTube having different policies, but not

5 10:39:31 specific in the way you asked your question.

6 10:39:36 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, did you ever read an

7 10:39:39 internal Google document in which a Google executive

8 10:39:44 criticized YouTube because of the way it dealt with

9 10:39:47 copyright issues?

10 10:39:47 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

11 10:39:50 calls for a legal conclusion; and objection to form.

12 10:39:52 THE WITNESS: I may have. I don't -- I don't

13 10:39:55 recall specifics.

14 10:39:56 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you remember being told

15 10:40:12 by a senior Google executive that a large part of

16 10:40:20 YouTube's traffic is from pirated content?

17 10:40:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

18 10:40:26 objection to form.

19 10:40:29 THE WITNESS: No specific recollection, no.

20 10:40:34 MR. BASKIN: Let me hand you what we will

21 10:40:36 mark as Schmidt 7. It was Drummond 17, I believe, and

22 10:40:47 Eun -- is that the way you pronounce it, E-U-N, Eun,

23 10:40:50 Eun 12?

24 10:40:51 THE WITNESS: Eun.

25 10:40:51 ///
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2 10:40:51 (Document marked Schmidt Exhibit 7

3 10:40:51 for identification.)

4 10:40:51 MR. BASKIN: Q. Who is Mr. Eun, Mr. Schmidt?

5 10:40:52 A I assume you're referring to David Eun at UM?

6 10:40:58 Q Correct.

7 10:41:02 Who is he?

8 10:41:03 A An executive that we hired from Time Warner

9 10:41:05 who was doing media -- media partnerships. He -- he

10 10:41:13 became Jennifer Feikin's boss.

11 10:41:17 Q Was he, in the pecking order of things,

12 10:41:19 basically the senior executive dealing with

13 10:41:23 partnerships with content providers?

14 10:41:25 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

15 10:41:26 THE WITNESS: As I recall in the org chart,

16 10:41:31 he did content or media partnerships reporting, I

17 10:41:38 think, to Omid Kordestani, who was responsible for

18 10:41:41 overall partnerships.

19 10:41:43 MR. BASKIN: Okay. Fair enough.

20 10:41:44 Q Now, let me hand -- hand you Exhibit 7.

21 10:42:06 A Okay.

22 10:42:12 Q And Mister --

23 10:42:13 A What would -- what would you like me to focus

24 10:42:16 on?

25 10:42:16 Q Well, first, would it be fair to say that you
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2 10:42:24 sent this e-mail and the chain that follows it --

3 10:42:30 strike that.

4 10:42:30 Is it fair to say the Eric Schmidt from whom

5 10:42:34 this e-mail was sent is you?

6 10:42:35 A That is correct.

7 10:42:36 Q And Mr. Kordestani, the cc, is the gentleman

8 10:42:40 you referred to a few seconds ago as Mr. Eun's direct

9 10:42:45 report; correct?

10 10:42:46 A That is correct.

11 10:42:46 Q And going down to Mr. Eun's e-mail, that

12 10:42:55 e-mail was sent to you in and around May 12th, 2006;

13 10:42:59 right, sir?

14 10:43:00 A Yes.

15 10:43:00 Q And that e-mail was sent to you prior to

16 10:43:02 something called the Video GPS; correct?

17 10:43:08 A That's correct.

18 10:43:08 Q And am I correct that GPS is a -- basically,

19 10:43:16 a quarterly review of product lines within Google that

20 10:43:16 you --

21 10:43:23 A No.

22 10:43:23 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

23 10:43:24 THE WITNESS: No.

24 10:43:24 MR. BASKIN: Q. What was the Video GPS then?

25 10:43:27 A Well, GPS stands for Google product strategy,
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2 10:43:30 and it's a series of meetings that occur on typically

3 10:43:35 Tuesdays on a rotating basis. And Video GPS would

4 10:43:39 have been a review of the video -- Google Video

5 10:43:43 product of some kind.

6 10:43:47 And I would read this as -- I read -- I read

7 10:43:52 this e-mail as he's briefing me ahead of the meeting.

8 10:44:00 Q And I take it you did in fact attend the

9 10:44:05 Video GPS, to your recollection?

10 10:44:06 A I normally attend them.

11 10:44:08 Q And in addition to you, would the executive

12 10:44:11 management committee of the company attend GPS

13 10:44:16 meetings?

14 10:44:16 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

15 10:44:18 THE WITNESS: Approximately half of the

16 10:44:19 executives -- senior executives do, yes.

17 10:44:21 MR. BASKIN: Q. So would Mr. Kordestani have

18 10:44:23 attended in the ordinary course?

19 10:44:25 A Normally not.

20 10:44:27 Q Since this fell within his jurisdiction, is

21 10:44:30 it likely he attended?

22 10:44:31 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

23 10:44:34 THE WITNESS: He would have to tell you, but

24 10:44:37 it's again un -- I would be speculating to know -- to

25 10:44:39 know that. Again, normally Omid is not in the
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2 10:44:42 meetings. Normally I am in the meetings.

3 10:44:43 MR. BASKIN: Q. What about Mr. Brin?

4 10:44:46 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

5 10:44:48 THE WITNESS: Some percentage of the time.

6 10:44:51 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall if Mr. Brin

7 10:44:53 attended --

8 10:44:54 A I do --

9 10:44:54 Q -- the Video GPS?

10 10:44:56 A -- I do not. I do not.

11 10:44:57 Q And what about Mr. Page?

12 10:45:02 A Again, no recollection.

13 10:45:03 Q In the ordinary course, does he tend to

14 10:45:08 attend Video GPS meetings?

15 10:45:09 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

16 10:45:13 THE WITNESS: Larry more than Sergey. But

17 10:45:17 their meetings -- the GPS's are built around me, so

18 10:45:20 the normal course of business, I'm there and the

19 10:45:23 others may or may not be there.

20 10:45:26 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

21 10:45:28 Q Now, you said -- I think you said that you

22 10:45:30 read Mr. Eun's -- am I pronouncing that right, by the

23 10:45:35 way?

24 10:45:36 A That's correct.

25 10:45:37 Q So it's E-U-N.
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2 10:45:38 You read Mr. Eun's e-mail as preparatory to

3 10:45:42 the Video GPS; correct?

4 10:45:45 A That is correct.

5 10:45:46 Q Now, he tells you that -- strike that.

6 10:46:00 Do you read this e-mail as focusing on the

7 10:46:03 issue of how to beat YouTube?

8 10:46:05 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

9 10:46:06 characterization of the document.

10 10:46:07 THE WITNESS: Well, I haven't read the whole

11 10:46:12 e-mail, but it starts by saying, "We are preparing in

12 10:46:18 preparation for the GPS how we beat YouTube in the

13 10:46:23 short term and how we win over time."

14 10:46:25 So that would be consistent with your

15 10:46:25 assertion.

16 10:46:27 MR. BASKIN: Q. And do you recall that one

17 10:46:28 of the topics being discussed as a way of beating

18 10:46:32 YouTube was whether Google Video should relax

19 10:46:36 enforcement of our copyright policies in an effort to

20 10:46:41 stimulate traffic growth?

21 10:46:43 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

22 10:46:43 characterization of the document.

23 10:46:45 THE WITNESS: You would have to point me to a

24 10:46:47 paragraph or a sentence here.

25 10:46:49 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, first, do you -- do
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2 10:46:51 you recall this e-mail?

3 10:46:52 A I do not.

4 10:46:52 Q Have you seen this e-mail prior to today, to

5 10:46:55 the best of your recollection?

6 10:46:57 A I think --

7 10:46:58 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

8 10:46:58 THE WITNESS: Go ahead.

9 10:46:59 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the extent it

10 10:47:01 seeks communications with counsel.

11 10:47:02 MR. BASKIN: Okay. Fair enough.

12 10:47:03 Q Now, so let's go to the e-mail, sir, at the

13 10:47:05 bottom. You see it says -- the paragraph that reads

14 10:47:11 as follows, let me point it out to you, "there is a

15 10:47:17 chance of pursuing short-term goals with such

16 10:47:21 zealousness that we develop blind spots that could

17 10:47:25 hurt us later. For example, there was heated debate

18 10:47:31 about whether we should relax enforcement of our

19 10:47:34 copyright policies in an effort to stimulate traffic

20 10:47:38 growth, despite the inevitable damage it would cause

21 10:47:43 to relationships with content owners."

22 10:47:48 Do you see that, sir?

23 10:47:50 A I do see that paragraph.

24 10:47:51 Q Do you remember reading that paragraph in and

25 10:47:53 around May 2006?
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2 10:47:55 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

3 10:47:56 THE WITNESS: As I indicated, I do not recall

4 10:47:58 the e-mail.

5 10:47:58 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall being party to

6 10:48:00 a discussion as to whether Google Video should relax

7 10:48:04 its copyright policies --

8 10:48:05 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the extent it

9 10:48:06 seeks a leading conclusion.

10 10:48:06 MR. BASKIN: Excuse me. Excuse me. Let me

11 10:48:08 finish. Then you may register your objection.

12 10:48:11 Q Do you recall whether -- strike that.

13 10:48:17 Do you recall being involved in discussions

14 10:48:20 in and around May 2006 on the topic of whether Google

15 10:48:29 Video should relax enforcement of its copyright

16 10:48:31 policies in an effort to stimulate traffic growth?

17 10:48:34 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and

18 10:48:35 objection to the extent it seeks communications with

19 10:48:37 counsel, to which I instruct the witness not to

20 10:48:39 answer.

21 10:48:39 THE WITNESS: I only have a vague

22 10:48:43 recollection of their -- as I testified previously, I

23 10:48:48 have only a vague recollection of us talking about the

24 10:48:51 difference between their policies, "their" being

25 10:48:55 YouTube's and ours.
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2 10:48:57 MR. BASKIN: Q. So you do not have a

3 10:48:58 recollection of being party to a discussion about

4 10:49:01 whether Google Video should relax its policies to

5 10:49:03 comport with YouTube's?

6 10:49:05 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

7 10:49:07 THE WITNESS: And again, I have no specific

8 10:49:08 recollection in that area.

9 10:49:11 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, in the next paragraph,

10 10:49:16 Mr. Eun says, "I think we should beat YouTube - and

11 10:49:25 all competitors - but not at all costs. A large part

12 10:49:31 of their traffic is from pirated content."

13 10:49:34 Do you see that, sir?

14 10:49:35 A I see that.

15 10:49:36 Q Does -- do you recall reading that sentence

16 10:49:38 in and around May of 2006?

17 10:49:39 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

18 10:49:40 THE WITNESS: As I previously said, I don't

19 10:49:43 recall this e-mail and, therefore, I don't recall this

20 10:49:44 sentence.

21 10:49:45 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall a conversation

22 10:49:46 with Mr. Eun on the topic that a large part of

23 10:49:54 YouTube's traffic is from pirated content?

24 10:49:57 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; lacks

25 10:49:59 foundation.
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2 10:49:59 THE WITNESS: I do not.

3 10:50:00 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall any such

4 10:50:01 discussion among the -- in the EMC meetings?

5 10:50:04 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

6 10:50:06 objection to form.

7 10:50:08 THE WITNESS: I'm assuming you mean EMG,

8 10:50:10 which was the Executive Management Group, and I have

9 10:50:14 no such recollection.

10 10:50:15 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall ever

11 10:50:16 discussing the concept that a large part of YouTube's

12 10:50:19 traffic is from pirated content with Mr. Page?

13 10:50:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form. Objection;

14 10:50:26 lacks foundation.

15 10:50:27 THE WITNESS: Again, same answer, no

16 10:50:29 recollection.

17 10:50:29 MR. BASKIN: Q. And the same answer with

18 10:50:31 respect to Mr. Brin, I take it?

19 10:50:33 THE WITNESS: That --

20 10:50:33 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

21 10:50:34 THE WITNESS: -- that is correct.

22 10:50:35 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, in the course of this

23 10:50:36 same e-mail, Mr. Eun says in the next sentence, "When

24 10:50:44 we compare our traffic numbers to theirs, we should

25 10:50:48 acknowledge that we are comparing our 'legal traffic'
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2 10:50:55 to their mix of traffic from legal and illegal

3 10:50:58 content."

4 10:50:59 Do you see that, sir?

5 10:51:01 A Uh-huh. I do.

6 10:51:01 Q I take it you have no recollection of reading

7 10:51:04 that sentence in and around May of 2006?

8 10:51:05 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

9 10:51:07 THE WITNESS: Again, I previously answered I

10 10:51:11 don't recall any -- any -- since I don't recall the

11 10:51:12 e-mail, I also don't recall any of the specific

12 10:51:13 sentences in the e-mail.

13 10:51:14 MR. BASKIN: Q. And the same answers that

14 10:51:15 you don't recall conversations with Mr. Eun, or among

15 10:51:18 the EMG, or with Mr. Page, or with Mr. Brin with

16 10:51:21 respect to that -- that communication; correct?

17 10:51:23 MR. MANCINI: Same objections as prior.

18 10:51:25 THE WITNESS: That is correct.

19 10:51:26 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, he then proceeds to

20 10:51:32 say, "One senior media executive told me they are

21 10:51:37 monitoring YouTube very closely and refer to them as a

22 10:51:41 video Grokster."

23 10:51:42 Do you see that?

24 10:51:42 A I do.

25 10:51:43 Q Now, you knew what was meant by Grokster at
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2 10:51:48 the time; correct?

3 10:51:48 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

4 10:51:50 Objection to form.

5 10:51:55 THE WITNESS: Not really.

6 10:51:59 MR. BASKIN: Q. You were not aware, in May

7 10:52:00 of 2006, that Grokster was a company that the Supreme

8 10:52:07 Court of the United States had concluded had engaged

9 10:52:12 in illegal copyright violation practices?

10 10:52:15 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

11 10:52:16 and objection to form.

12 10:52:17 THE WITNESS: I was not aware. If what you

13 10:52:20 said is true, I was not aware of that. He may have

14 10:52:26 meant -- I would be guessing what he meant.

15 10:52:29 MR. MANCINI: So I don't want the witness to

16 10:52:31 speculate.

17 10:52:31 THE WITNESS: So...

18 10:52:33 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, I take the same answers

19 10:52:34 as my -- as the earlier questions. You've never

20 10:52:37 discussed this with --

21 10:52:38 A Sure.

22 10:52:38 Q -- any human being that you can recall?

23 10:52:41 A Right.

24 10:52:41 Q And you don't recall discussing it with

25 10:52:43 Mr. Eun; correct?
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2 10:52:44 MR. MANCINI: Same objections as prior.

3 10:52:45 THE WITNESS: That is correct. You -- go

4 10:52:47 ahead.

5 10:52:47 MR. BASKIN: Now, you're moaning. Do you

6 10:52:59 want a break? Should we go off the record for five,

7 10:53:04 ten minutes?

8 10:53:05 MR. MANCINI: Sure.

9 10:53:06 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This is the end of

10 10:53:09 videotape and DVD number one in the deposition of Eric

11 10:53:13 Schmidt on May 6th, 2009. The time is 10:53 a.m.

12 10:53:20 We're off the record.

13 10:53:33 (Recess taken.)

14 11:10:12 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This is the beginning of

15 11:10:13 DVD number two in the continuing deposition of Eric

16 11:10:17 Schmidt on May 6th, 2009. The time is 11:09 a.m.

17 11:10:25 We're back on the record.

18 11:10:27 MR. BASKIN: Q. Mr. Schmidt, Schmidt 7, the

19 11:10:38 memo from Mr. Eun to you, is May of 2006, and then

20 11:10:46 five months later, by my count, you bought YouTube.

21 11:10:51 You don't recall discussing the Eun memo with

22 11:10:54 anyone, not with Mr. Kordestani or anyone else?

23 11:10:58 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

24 11:11:00 asked and answered.

25 11:11:00 MR. BASKIN: Q. Is that correct?
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2 11:11:01 A Well, as I previously said, I don't recall

3 11:11:03 this memo at all.

4 11:11:04 Q Okay. Do you recall what you were shown by

5 11:11:13 the Google Video executives at the Video GPS held

6 11:11:16 after this memo was sent to you?

7 11:11:18 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

8 11:11:20 objection to form.

9 11:11:20 THE WITNESS: I do not.

10 11:11:21 MR. BASKIN: Q. Is it common at GPS meetings

11 11:11:28 for a deck of materials to be circulated to you?

12 11:11:34 A In general terms, there's usually some form

13 11:11:38 of a presentation.

14 11:11:43 Q And in this case, this "some form of a

15 11:11:45 presentation" would have been made by Google Video

16 11:11:47 executives who were actually competing with YouTube at

17 11:11:49 the time; correct?

18 11:11:52 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

19 11:11:55 objection to form.

20 11:11:56 THE WITNESS: As a general statement, the

21 11:11:58 Video GPS would have had such a presentation.

22 11:12:00 MR. BASKIN: Now, let me show you what was

23 11:12:02 previously marked as Drummond 18, and we will mark it

24 11:12:16 as Schmidt 8.

25 11:12:17 ///
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2 11:12:17 (Document marked Schmidt Exhibit 8

3 11:12:27 for identification.)

4 11:12:27 MS. KOHLMANN: 8.

5 11:12:37 MR. MANCINI: Watch your soda when you reach.

6 11:12:39 MR. BASKIN: We may not have enough, guys.

7 11:12:44 You may have to share. Oh, okay. Here's another one.

8 11:13:06 Q Now, I note, sir, that you are not -- on the

9 11:13:09 cover page you are not a recipient of this, but you'll

10 11:13:15 see the cover page says that this is the final content

11 11:13:21 team pages for Video GPS; do you see that, sir?

12 11:13:25 A I do see that, yes.

13 11:13:26 Q And is this the form in which you would

14 11:13:29 expect a deck to be communicated to you at GPS

15 11:13:32 meetings?

16 11:13:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; lacks

17 11:13:34 foundation.

18 11:13:34 THE WITNESS: In general terms, yes.

19 11:13:38 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

20 11:13:40 Q And can you identify for us specifically

21 11:13:45 whether Schmidt Exhibit 8 was seen by you in and

22 11:13:56 around May of 2006?

23 11:13:58 A I don't recall specifically.

24 11:13:59 Q You don't recall the document specifically?

25 11:14:01 A No.
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2 11:14:02 Q Now, I just want to walk you through some

3 11:14:07 features of the documents, see if this flags your

4 11:14:11 memory about having certain information communicated

5 11:14:13 to you by the Google Video team.

6 11:14:18 Turn, for example -- and I think we're going

7 11:14:23 to have to use Bates stamps here, but if you see

8 11:14:26 there's a 496620.

9 11:14:29 A Okay. I do.

10 11:14:40 Q And if you read 496620, do you have any

11 11:14:50 recollection of seeing that page prior to today?

12 11:14:52 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

13 11:14:55 I just want to note that this document from

14 11:14:57 its obvious gaps clearly appears to be a draft; and

15 11:15:00 objection to form.

16 11:15:02 THE WITNESS: I have no recollection of this

17 11:15:05 document, and I also have no recollection of this

18 11:15:07 specific page.

19 11:15:08 MR. BASKIN: Q. So I take it that you have

20 11:15:12 no -- do you have a recollection -- strike that.

21 11:15:15 Do you have a recollection of the Google

22 11:15:20 Video team communicating to you in May of 2006 that,

23 11:15:29 "Premium content owners acknowledge YouTube can

24 11:15:34 provide some level of promotion, but mainly perceive

25 11:15:39 YouTube as trafficking mostly illegal content. It's a
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2 11:15:45 video Grokster."

3 11:15:47 Do you see that, sir?

4 11:15:48 MR. MANCINI: Object; objection to form and

5 11:15:49 lacks foundation.

6 11:15:51 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall the Google

7 11:15:55 Video team communicating to you in May of 2006 that

8 11:16:00 sentence, sir?

9 11:16:01 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

10 11:16:01 THE WITNESS: I do not.

11 11:16:03 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall -- if we turn

12 11:16:11 to the page Bates stamped 627, do you see a page

13 11:16:27 that's called "How do we win" on the top of it?

14 11:16:31 A I do.

15 11:16:31 Q And do you see a section three bold sentences

16 11:16:38 down that says, "Google Video can be best partner to

17 11:16:43 content owners."

18 11:16:44 Do you see that, sir?

19 11:16:45 A I do.

20 11:16:46 MR. MANCINI: Objection; the document speaks

21 11:16:48 for itself.

22 11:16:49 THE WITNESS: I do see that.

23 11:16:50 MR. BASKIN: Q. And do you see the Google

24 11:16:53 Video team communicating to you that, "Google Video

25 11:16:58 should respect copyrights of premium content owners
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2 11:17:03 (we should beat YouTube by improving features and user

3 11:17:09 experience, not being a rogue enabler of content

4 11:17:15 theft)."

5 11:17:16 Do you see that, sir?

6 11:17:16 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

7 11:17:17 and continue the objection on the use of this document

8 11:17:19 which appears to be an obvious draft.

9 11:17:21 THE WITNESS: You said communicate to me.

10 11:17:26 It's not obvious to me that this was -- as I

11 11:17:29 indicated, I have no recollection of this document, so

12 11:17:32 I don't know that I am the target for this document.

13 11:17:34 But I see the sentence that you quoted,

14 11:17:37 absolutely.

15 11:17:37 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, do you remember the

16 11:17:42 Google Video team expressing the sentiment set forth

17 11:17:46 in the -- in that sentence --

18 11:17:47 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

19 11:17:48 MR. BASKIN: -- found -- found on Schmidt 8?

20 11:17:51 THE WITNESS: As I indicated, I don't recall.

21 11:17:53 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

22 11:17:55 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.

23 11:17:57 MR. BASKIN: How about --

24 11:17:58 THE WITNESS: I forget about the --

25 11:17:58 MR. BASKIN: Q. Let's turn to 6333 of the
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2 11:18:03 last Bates stamp numbers, and are you on a page that

3 11:18:29 says, "How is Google Video doing?"

4 11:18:33 A I am.

5 11:18:33 Q Do you recall seeing that page, sir, prior to

6 11:18:35 today?

7 11:18:35 A Again, you can ask me on every page. I don't

8 11:18:37 recall the document and, therefore, I don't recall any

9 11:18:40 of the specific pages. I, therefore, do not recall

10 11:18:43 this page.

11 11:18:46 Q And do you recall the Google Video team

12 11:18:49 saying to you during the course of the GPS session

13 11:18:56 that, "YouTube's content is all free, and much of it

14 11:19:03 is highly sought-after pirated clips"?

15 11:19:09 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

16 11:19:09 MR. BASKIN: Close quote.

17 11:19:10 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

18 11:19:11 and same objections -- continuing objections to the

19 11:19:13 use of this document.

20 11:19:15 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you remember, sir?

21 11:19:16 A No recollection.

22 11:19:17 Q And let me do one more and see if this jars

23 11:19:21 your recollection.

24 11:19:22 A Okay.

25 11:19:27 Q If you turn to Bates stamp 637, being the



805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

94

1 SCHMIDT, ERIC

2 11:19:39 Bates stamp number, there's a page, "Important points

3 11:19:56 to make somewhere in the deck"; do you have that page,

4 11:20:00 sir?

5 11:20:00 A I do.

6 11:20:01 Q Do you recall the Google Video team

7 11:20:02 communicating to you during the course of the GPS

8 11:20:08 that, "YouTube's business model is completely

9 11:20:11 sustained by pirated content. They are at the mercy

10 11:20:17 of companies not responding with DMCA requests."

11 11:20:24 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

12 11:20:24 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you see that, sir?

13 11:20:25 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

14 11:20:26 and continuing objection to the fact that this is

15 11:20:28 obviously a draft document, as made evident by the

16 11:20:32 title of this slide.

17 11:20:33 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall, sir, having

18 11:20:35 that fact communicated to you by the Google Video team

19 11:20:37 during the course of the GPS?

20 11:20:38 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

21 11:20:39 THE WITNESS: No recollection.

22 11:20:42 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, I take it that you do

23 11:21:02 not recall having discussions with the Executive

24 11:21:23 Management Group -- is it group or committee?

25 11:21:26 A Group, EMG.
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2 11:21:27 Q That you not -- I take it you do not recall

3 11:21:32 discussing with the EMG the points set forth on

4 11:21:39 Schmidt 8 that we've -- I referred you to a few

5 11:21:42 minutes ago?

6 11:21:43 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

7 11:21:44 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Which? Are you

8 11:21:45 talking about the whole document?

9 11:21:47 MR. BASKIN: Q. No. The -- the four or five

10 11:21:49 references to YouTube being, you know, wholly

11 11:21:53 sustained by pirated content --

12 11:21:56 A Yes, I see it, yes.

13 11:21:56 Q -- being a rogue enabler --

14 11:21:58 A Sure.

15 11:21:59 Q -- of copyright violations, being a video

16 11:22:02 Grokster.

17 11:22:02 Were any of those sentiments communicated by

18 11:22:05 you or discussed by you with members of the EMG?

19 11:22:08 MR. MANCINI: Same objections as prior; and

20 11:22:09 objection to the characterization of the contents of

21 11:22:12 this document.

22 11:22:12 THE WITNESS: Again, I have no recollection

23 11:22:13 of that.

24 11:22:14 MR. BASKIN: Q. No recollection of

25 11:22:16 discussing it with Mr. Brin?
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2 11:22:18 A That is correct.

3 11:22:19 Q Mr. Page?

4 11:22:20 A That is correct.

5 11:22:20 Q Mr. Kordestani?

6 11:22:21 A That is correct.

7 11:22:24 Q Now --

8 11:22:25 MR. MANCINI: I also want to object to the

9 11:22:27 extent that Mr. Drummond, I believe, is on EMG. And

10 11:22:31 if communications took place with him, I instruct the

11 11:22:33 witness not to answer on the grounds of privilege.

12 11:22:36 MR. BASKIN: Q. Even if you don't remember

13 11:22:41 this particular document, sir, do you remember a

14 11:22:45 similar discussion of YouTube's practices at the GPS?

15 11:22:49 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

16 11:22:52 THE WITNESS: Well, unfortunately, I don't

17 11:22:55 recall the GPS. Therefore, I don't recall what

18 11:22:59 happened at the GPS, and I don't recall the specific

19 11:23:01 discussion at the GPS.

20 11:23:02 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, how about between May

21 11:23:27 of 2006 and October 2006, when you bought YouTube? Do

22 11:23:34 you recall having discussions of these various points

23 11:23:40 made by the Video GPS folks to the EMG?

24 11:23:46 MR. MANCINI: Same objections; and object on

25 11:23:49 the basis that it lacks foundation and may call for a
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2 11:23:52 communication with counsel.

3 11:23:53 THE WITNESS: Again, no -- no recollection.

4 11:23:56 MR. BASKIN: Q. And no recollect -- I'm

5 11:23:57 sorry?

6 11:23:59 A No recollection of anything specific.

7 11:24:00 Q And no recollection of discussing it with

8 11:24:03 Mr. Brin; correct?

9 11:24:04 A That is correct.

10 11:24:04 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

11 11:24:05 MR. BASKIN: Q. Or Mr. Page; correct?

12 11:24:07 A That's correct.

13 11:24:07 MR. MANCINI: Lacks foundation.

14 11:24:08 MR. BASKIN: Q. Or Mr. Kordestani; correct?

15 11:24:10 MR. MANCINI: Lacks foundation.

16 11:24:11 THE WITNESS: That is correct.

17 11:24:13 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, am I right, sir, that

18 11:24:22 two months after the -- after the Eun memo and after

19 11:24:29 the GPS meeting, the Video GPS meeting, you instructed

20 11:24:36 Mr. Drummond to try to buy 100 percent of YouTube?

21 11:24:40 MR. MANCINI: Objection; mischaracterizes

22 11:24:42 testimony; lacks foundation.

23 11:24:48 THE WITNESS: Sorry.

24 11:24:49 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, let me do it a

25 11:24:50 different way.
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2 11:27:30 characterization of the document; lacks foundation.

3 11:27:32 THE WITNESS: Well, it's materially false

4 11:27:36 that that's -- what you said is true because he voted

5 11:27:39 for the acquisition.

6 11:27:40 MR. BASKIN: Q. I'm asking at any time, did

7 11:27:42 he oppose it?

8 11:27:44 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

9 11:27:45 THE WITNESS: This e-mail implies that he

10 11:27:48 did, that he was opposed to it as of July or whatever.

11 11:27:51 MR. BASKIN: Q. But you have no recollection

12 11:27:52 of it?

13 11:27:53 A No.

14 11:27:53 Q Now, do you recall at the GPS whether

15 11:28:03 Mr. Brin expressly addressed the issue of whether

16 11:28:12 Google Video should compete with YouTube by relaxing

17 11:28:17 its copyright enforcement policies?

18 11:28:19 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

19 11:28:20 and objection, calls for legal conclusions.

20 11:28:21 THE WITNESS: I have no recollection of

21 11:28:23 Sergey's views. I don't recall the GPS meeting. I

22 11:28:28 don't recall whether he was there, and I don't recall

23 11:28:30 his views.

24 11:28:30 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you know the phrase

25 11:28:35 "something is not Googley"? Does that mean something
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2 11:28:39 to you?

3 11:28:40 THE WITNESS: Well, I --

4 11:28:40 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

5 11:28:41 THE WITNESS: -- I've certainly heard it,

6 11:28:44 yeah.

7 11:28:44 MR. BASKIN: Q. And that means, in normal

8 11:28:45 language, it's not the right thing to do, or it's not

9 11:28:49 right, or something like that? Is that what "not

10 11:28:51 Googley" means to you?

11 11:28:52 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

12 11:28:53 THE WITNESS: It's not a precise phrase.

13 11:28:55 It's used by people who want to criticize some other

14 11:28:58 activity.

15 11:29:01 MR. BASKIN: Q. And do you specifically

16 11:29:04 recall whether, at the Video GPS meeting in and around

17 11:29:13 May 2006, whether Mr. Brin made the statement that,

18 11:29:21 "Competing against YouTube by relaxing copyright

19 11:29:27 enforcement practices is not a Googley thing to do"?

20 11:29:32 MR. MANCINI: Again, objection; lacks

21 11:29:34 foundation; and objection to form; and objection to

22 11:29:35 the extent it seeks a legal conclusion.

23 11:29:37 THE WITNESS: I have no recollection of -- of

24 11:29:41 such an assertion.

25 11:29:42 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, do you recall when the
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2 11:30:06 EMG -- strike that.

3 11:30:11 I take it the EMG was in agreement that

4 11:30:16 Google should in fact purchase YouTube?

5 11:30:19 A At what point?

6 11:30:22 Q Prior to submitting it to the board.

7 11:30:25 A Yes. As of -- as -- as of the submission to

8 11:30:27 the board, the management team had agreed to promote

9 11:30:30 it to the board.

10 11:30:31 Q And do you recall -- recall ever having a

11 11:30:34 discussion among the management team of Google

12 11:30:42 concerning the various statements about YouTube being

13 11:30:47 a video Grokster or a rogue enabler of copyright

14 11:30:52 violations or being sustained by pirated clips?

15 11:30:57 Do you recall those topics being discussed by

16 11:30:59 the EMG?

17 11:31:00 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and

18 11:31:02 objection to the extent it seeks a legal conclusion

19 11:31:05 and communications with counsel, to which I instruct

20 11:31:07 the witness not to answer.

21 11:31:08 THE WITNESS: No recollection.

22 11:31:13 MR. BASKIN: Q. Never discussed it, as far

23 11:31:15 as you recall?

24 11:31:15 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

25 11:31:16 THE WITNESS: Again, as I previously
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2 11:38:21 A The subsequent piece of work, "a piece of

3 11:38:24 crap. /FC," that is the signature of Mr. Frank Cousak.

4 11:38:30 Q I see. Got it.

5 11:38:31 A Okay. Shall I continue with the other

6 11:38:34 e-mail? If you -- maybe I should just for

7 11:38:38 completeness --

8 11:38:38 Q Yeah, just --

9 11:38:38 A -- since you brought it up.

10 11:38:38 Q Okay.

11 11:38:42 A You'll notice that this is even more nested.

12 11:38:45 Do you see the two carets that is ">>23 the Digital

13 11:38:52 Millennium" --

14 11:38:52 Q Right.

15 11:38:52 A -- I wrote that one line.

16 11:38:55 The single carets, those little paren --

17 11:38:58 those little, again, greater than, greater than, "The

18 11:39:00 DMCA" --

19 11:39:01 Q Right.

20 11:39:02 A -- that was written by Chanmen Tang.

21 11:39:07 Q I see.

22 11:39:09 A Then the person who wrote a -- and

23 11:39:11 misspelled, unfortunately -- "an possibly even more

24 11:39:15 evil law which hasn't been yet passed is SSCA," that

25 11:39:18 was written by Lawrence Gonzalez.
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2 11:39:23 If you look below it, you see the little

3 11:39:26 caret? It says "from." Then, "It would be a civil

4 11:39:29 offense to create," that's from the Wire.com website.

5 11:39:33 Q I see. Okay.

6 11:39:35 A So to be incredibly precise on these e-mails,

7 11:39:41 the only words that I wrote were "the Digital

8 11:39:44 Millennium Copyright Act."

9 11:39:47 Q I see. Got it. Okay.

10 11:39:54 Now, when Google purchased YouTube, did you

11 11:40:08 instruct Mr. Hurley and Mr. Chen that their primary

12 11:40:14 goal, at least immediate goal, was to grow the user

13 11:40:19 base and reach one billion views per day?

14 11:40:23 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

15 11:40:24 THE WITNESS: I don't recall the very

16 11:40:26 specific goal.

17 11:40:27 MR. BASKIN: Q. Does it sound like generally

18 11:40:31 something you said to them, that their -- that their

19 11:40:35 primary objective should be to grow the user base?

20 11:40:38 A Our -- our policy from acquisition was to

21 11:40:40 grow the user base. That is correct.

22 11:40:43 Q And --

23 11:40:44 A I don't recall the specific numbers.

24 11:40:46 Q You don't recall that they should grow it to

25 11:40:48 playbacks of one billion a day?
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2 11:40:51 A I don't recall any specific numbers.

3 11:40:52 Q And in late February or early March of 2008,

4 11:41:16 did you shift your thinking and instruct Mr. Hurley

5 11:41:25 that he should now be rapidly redirecting his efforts

6 11:41:29 from user growth to monetization?

7 11:41:33 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

8 11:41:34 and objection to form.

9 11:41:35 THE WITNESS: Remind me of the dates again.

10 11:41:37 MR. BASKIN: Q. Something in the vicinity of

11 11:41:41 late February, early March 2008.

12 11:41:44 A That's roughly correct.

13 11:41:47 Q And was this an actual meeting you had with

14 11:41:49 Mr. Hurley where you told him to redirect his efforts?

15 11:41:53 A I don't recall saying "redirect."

16 11:41:56 What I recall was to add revenue as a goal.

17 11:42:04 Q And let me show you, for example, what we'll

18 11:42:09 mark as Schmidt 12.

19 11:42:14 (Document marked Schmidt Exhibit 12

20 11:42:19 for identification.)

21 11:42:19 MR. BASKIN: This was marked during the

22 11:42:20 Hurley deposition as well, but I don't recall the

23 11:42:22 number.

24 11:42:56 Q You'll see, sir, that you are not a recipient

25 11:43:01 of this e-mail, and -- and no reason to believe you
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2 11:43:04 saw it, but it references in the second paragraph --

3 11:43:10 strike that.

4 11:43:10 You'll see Mr. Hurley is communicating to

5 11:43:13 some of his team, I think, and it says, "As you may

6 11:43:16 know, three weeks ago Eric" -- I assume that's you?

7 11:43:21 A I suppose.

8 11:43:22 Q -- "shifted his thinking on YouTube's focus.

9 11:43:26 So since that time, we have rapidly been redirecting

10 11:43:32 our efforts and resources from user growth to

11 11:43:34 monetization."

12 11:43:36 Do you see that?

13 11:43:36 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the use of a

14 11:43:39 document to which the witness is not copied.

15 11:43:40 THE WITNESS: I see the sentence, yes.

16 11:43:41 MR. BASKIN: Q. And does Mr. Hurley

17 11:43:46 accurately reflect the conversation you had with him

18 11:43:49 three weeks before March 14th, 2008?

19 11:43:51 MR. MANCINI: Same objection; and lacks

20 11:43:53 foundation.

21 11:43:53 THE WITNESS: As I indicated before, it is my

22 11:43:55 recollection that I told him to add revenue, not to

23 11:44:01 redirect.

24 11:44:01 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

25 11:44:03 Q And what -- what occurred during this time
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2 11:44:10 period that caused you to shift your thinking, as

3 11:44:17 Mr. Hurley refers to in an e-mail?

4 11:44:19 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

5 11:44:20 and objection to form.

6 11:44:21 THE WITNESS: The -- at this point, we have

7 11:44:29 owned YouTube for a year and a half, and their revenue

8 11:44:35 performance had been poor, and I felt that they should

9 11:44:44 spend more time on it.

10 11:44:46 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

11 11:44:47 THE WITNESS: That's my recollection.

12 11:44:48 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

13 11:45:03 Q Did you discuss with Mr. Hurley, in the

14 11:45:05 course of that conversation, any steps that YouTube

15 11:45:10 should take in and around March of 2008 to achieve

16 11:45:18 greater monetization?

17 11:45:20 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

18 11:45:21 and objection to form.

19 11:45:22 THE WITNESS: We -- we made an explicit

20 11:45:27 decision upon the acquisition of YouTube to operate it

21 11:45:30 quite independently. So I'm not -- I recall no such

22 11:45:37 direction from me to him on details.

23 11:45:43 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

24 11:45:44 Q What was the reason why you decided to

25 11:46:00 operate YouTube independently?



805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

113

1 SCHMIDT, ERIC

2 11:46:05 A In my experience as an executive, when you

3 11:46:08 have strong founders, it's very important that they

4 11:46:12 feel that they have control over their company after

5 11:46:17 it's acquired.

6 11:46:19 Because of the location, which was San Bruno,

7 11:46:23 and because we thought the founders were very

8 11:46:27 talented, we made an explicit decision to not fold

9 11:46:30 YouTube's business operations into Google's.

10 11:46:34 In particular, to keep separate brand,

11 11:46:37 separate business activities, separate deals and

12 11:46:39 partnerships, because we thought that would create

13 11:46:42 more choices, more differentiation and fundamentally

14 11:46:47 retain the founders.

15 11:46:56 Q Okay. Now, are you familiar with a company

16 11:47:11 called Audio Magic? Have you ever heard that name

17 11:47:18 before?

18 11:47:18 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

19 11:47:21 MR. BASKIN: Q. I'm sorry. Sorry. My

20 11:47:24 mistake. Withdrawn.

21 11:47:26 A That's all right. I --

22 11:47:27 Q Withdrawn.

23 11:47:28 A Sorry.

24 11:47:28 Q How about Audible Magic?

25 11:47:30 A I have heard their name.
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2 11:47:31 Q Okay. Now, as you sit here today, do you

3 11:47:40 know whether in 19 -- in 2006, before the acquisition

4 11:47:46 of YouTube by Google, whether Google had entered into

5 11:47:50 a license agreement with Audible Magic to provide

6 11:47:57 fingerprint technology?

7 11:47:58 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

8 11:48:00 and objection to form.

9 11:48:03 THE WITNESS: This is a question about

10 11:48:05 Google, not YouTube?

11 11:48:05 MR. BASKIN: Q. Question about YouTube, not

12 11:48:08 Google.

13 11:48:08 A You may --

14 11:48:08 Q So let me rephrase it again.

15 11:48:10 A Okay. Try it again.

16 11:48:11 MR. MANCINI: Please.

17 11:48:12 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you know whether, before

18 11:48:13 Google acquired YouTube --

19 11:48:16 A Ah, okay.

20 11:48:16 Q -- did YouTube enter into a contract with

21 11:48:19 Audible Magic whereby Audible Magic was going to

22 11:48:22 provide fingerprint technology to YouTube?

23 11:48:26 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and lacks

24 11:48:26 foundation.

25 11:48:28 THE WITNESS: No recollection.
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2 11:48:32 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you -- do you have a

3 11:48:33 recollection that YouTube had engaged a fingerprint

4 11:48:37 technology vendor prior to your acquisition?

5 11:48:39 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

6 11:48:40 THE WITNESS: Only in very general terms.

7 11:48:42 MR. BASKIN: Q. Meaning you generally heard

8 11:48:45 that?

9 11:48:46 A When I say "general terms," I mean at some

10 11:48:49 point I'm sure somebody told me something like that,

11 11:48:52 but the specifics of the company, the details and so

12 11:48:56 forth, I don't recall.

13 11:48:57 Q I assume you never saw the license agreement

14 11:48:59 between YouTube and Audible Magic?

15 11:49:02 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

16 11:49:04 objection to form.

17 11:49:05 THE WITNESS: If there is one, I have not

18 11:49:06 seen it.

19 11:49:07 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

20 11:49:08 Q And I assume you have -- no one discussed

21 11:49:11 with you the cost of the license, what it was

22 11:49:13 costing -- what it would cost YouTube to utilize

23 11:49:16 Audible Magic's fingerprint technologies?

24 11:49:19 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

25 11:49:20 and objection to form.
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2 11:49:21 THE WITNESS: Yeah. Again, no rec -- no

3 11:49:23 recollection, no knowledge in that area.

4 11:49:25 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, after Google's

5 11:49:40 acquisition of YouTube in late 2006 and then into

6 11:49:46 2007, were you aware that Google and YouTube were

7 11:49:57 carrying out large -- were carrying out negotiations

8 11:50:00 with large media companies to see if revenue-sharing

9 11:50:09 agreements could be reached with them?

10 11:50:10 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

11 11:50:11 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I -- which -- which

12 11:50:13 dates and which companies? So --

13 11:50:16 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, I can be specific.

14 11:50:18 A Yeah.

15 11:50:18 Q But after the acquisition --

16 11:50:20 A So after acquisition?

17 11:50:20 Q Yes.

18 11:50:21 A So Google and YouTube are together.

19 11:50:22 Q Right.

20 11:50:22 A Okay.

21 11:50:24 Q Were you being generally kept abreast of

22 11:50:28 negotiations between YouTube and the major media

23 11:50:31 companies regarding revenue-sharing agreements?

24 11:50:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

25 11:50:33 THE WITNESS: Yes, in general terms.
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2 11:50:34 MR. BASKIN: Q. And was this a topic that

3 11:50:36 was discussed with the board from time to time?

4 11:50:39 MR. MANCINI: Objection to from.

5 11:50:41 THE WITNESS: I have no recollection of the

6 11:50:43 board.

7 11:50:43 MR. BASKIN: Q. What about the EMG --

8 11:50:48 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

9 11:50:49 MR. BASKIN: Q. -- with respect to the

10 11:50:50 management group?

11 11:50:52 MR. MANCINI: And objection to the extent it

12 11:50:53 seeks a privileged communication.

13 11:50:55 THE WITNESS: Yes.

14 11:50:57 MR. BASKIN: Q. And how frequently was the

15 11:50:59 status of negotiations with large media companies

16 11:51:02 discussed at the EMG?

17 11:51:03 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and

18 11:51:04 objection to the extent it seeks privileged

19 11:51:07 communications.

20 11:51:07 THE WITNESS: No specific period, and not --

21 11:51:16 not very frequently, so...

22 11:51:18 MR. BASKIN: Q. But with respect to the five

23 11:51:21 or six largest media companies, did you make it your

24 11:51:26 practice to stay abreast of the status of negotiations

25 11:51:28 with them?
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2 11:51:29 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

3 11:51:30 THE WITNESS: You'll have to define what

4 11:51:37 "staying abreast" means for me to understand your

5 11:51:39 question.

6 11:51:39 MR. BASKIN: Q. Well, was the -- Mr. Eun's

7 11:51:42 team and Mr. Kordestani, were they regularly advising

8 11:51:49 you regarding the status of negotiations with the

9 11:51:51 large media companies?

10 11:51:54 A I would use the word "periodic" and say that

11 11:51:58 I was periodically advised.

12 11:52:00 Q And was there actually a phenomenon or an

13 11:52:03 event called the Deal Review?

14 11:52:08 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

15 11:52:08 THE WITNESS: That is correct.

16 11:52:09 MR. BASKIN: Q. And were you a participant

17 11:52:10 in the Deal Review?

18 11:52:12 A Sometimes.

19 11:52:12 Q And in the course of the Deal Review, was --

20 11:52:20 strike that.

21 11:52:22 Who were -- who were -- who were the

22 11:52:22 participants on the Deal Review?

23 11:52:25 A Well, at the time, Deal Reviews were owned by

24 11:52:28 Omid, so he was -- he would have always been there;

25 11:52:35 and then depending on schedule, I may or may not have
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2 11:52:37 been there.

3 11:52:37 Q And what about other members of the EMG?

4 11:52:41 Would they be in attendance?

5 11:52:44 A Some of them. It would -- it would be -- the

6 11:52:46 rule is they're all invited, so...

7 11:52:49 Q And did Mr. Brin attend the reviews from time

8 11:52:54 to time?

9 11:52:54 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; vague,

10 11:52:57 "reviews."

11 11:52:58 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

12 11:52:58 Q Did Mr. Brin attend the business review

13 11:53:03 meetings from time to time?

14 11:53:04 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

15 11:53:05 THE WITNESS: Again, periodically each of

16 11:53:08 them, which would include Sergey Brin, Larry Page,

17 11:53:13 Omid Kordestani, the people you've named before.

18 11:53:16 MR. BASKIN: Q. And did these -- did these

19 11:53:18 business reviews occur weekly?

20 11:53:21 A They're scheduled on Mondays. Yes.

21 11:53:23 Q And did you make a point of trying to attend

22 11:53:28 most of the weekly meetings, if you could?

23 11:53:33 A In the pantheon of -- in the pantheon of --

24 11:53:39 in the cacophony of Google, it's in the middle of the

25 11:53:42 meetings that I attempt to attend as opposed to the
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2 12:19:08 MR. BASKIN: Q. The majority was related to

3 12:19:10 the monetary terms?

4 12:19:12 A Absolutely.

5 12:19:12 MR. MANCINI: And objection to the extent it

6 12:19:14 seeks communications with counsel.

7 12:19:16 MR. BASKIN: Q. And -- but as you sit here

8 12:19:20 today, do you have a -- any recollection of the topic

9 12:19:26 of making readily available fingerprint technology or

10 12:19:30 metadata search technology available to these media

11 12:19:34 companies being discussed?

12 12:19:35 MR. MANCINI: Again, objection to the extent

13 12:19:37 it seeks privileged communications, to which the

14 12:19:40 witness is instructed not to answer.

15 12:19:41 THE WITNESS: As I previously discussed, we

16 12:19:44 developed a product which encompassed those

17 12:19:47 technologies called Claim Your Content, and we did

18 12:19:50 review that, and we viewed that as a very positive

19 12:19:55 outcome for the media companies. And so we did

20 12:19:58 discuss CYC, as we knew -- as we knew it with them.

21 12:20:03 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, in 2006 and 2007, sir,

22 12:20:19 was it Google policy that fingerprint technologies

23 12:20:29 would only be made available to companies who entered

24 12:20:31 into revenue-sharing deals with Google?

25 12:20:33 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.
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2 12:20:35 THE WITNESS: To my recollection, it was not

3 12:20:39 the policy that you just said.

4 12:20:41 MR. BASKIN: Q. It was -- your recollection

5 12:20:45 is you were prepared to use fingerprint technologies

6 12:20:47 in '06 and '07 in connection with media companies that

7 12:20:53 did not enter into revenue-sharing agreements?

8 12:20:55 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

9 12:20:55 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Maybe I got the

10 12:20:57 dates confused. Your question was in '06 and '07,

11 12:21:01 prior to YouTube?

12 12:21:02 MR. BASKIN: Q. No. Let me start over

13 12:21:04 again.

14 12:21:04 A Okay.

15 12:21:04 Q We've got to get the dates pretty clear.

16 12:21:07 A Yes.

17 12:21:07 Q Let's start with the block of time from the

18 12:21:09 end of '06, 2006, when -- after you acquired YouTube.

19 12:21:19 A Okay.

20 12:21:19 Q Was it Google policy that fingerprint

21 12:21:28 technologies would only be made available to media

22 12:21:34 companies who entered into revenue-sharing deals with

23 12:21:37 YouTube?

24 12:21:38 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

25 12:21:39 and objection to form.
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2 12:21:40 THE WITNESS: The policy as you stated is

3 12:21:45 not -- was not our policy.

4 12:21:46 MR. BASKIN: Q. You actually recall a

5 12:21:48 meeting -- and -- a meeting or gathering where it was

6 12:21:53 agreed upon this was not the policy?

7 12:21:55 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

8 12:21:57 THE WITNESS: Yes.

9 12:21:57 MR. BASKIN: Q. Tell me about that meeting

10 12:21:58 or meetings.

11 12:22:00 MR. MANCINI: And objection to the extent it

12 12:22:01 seeks legal communications with counsel, to which the

13 12:22:03 witness is instructed not to answer.

14 12:22:05 THE WITNESS: I -- I don't recall this

15 12:22:07 specific meeting, but I do remember that I made the

16 12:22:10 decision.

17 12:22:10 MR. BASKIN: Q. And it was your decision

18 12:22:11 that in the end of 2006, that YouTube would make

19 12:22:19 fingerprint technologies available to media companies

20 12:22:23 even if they did not enter into a revenue-sharing

21 12:22:28 agreement?

22 12:22:28 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form.

23 12:22:29 THE WITNESS: Again, as part of our CYC

24 12:22:33 strategy, we agreed at my direction that the CYC

25 12:22:36 tools, which include the ones you described, would be
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2 12:22:39 available to media companies independent of whether

3 12:22:42 they did a deal with us.

4 12:22:43 MR. BASKIN: Q. And when did you make that

5 12:22:44 decision, Mr. Schmidt?

6 12:22:47 A Certainly around the time of the acquisition,

7 12:22:50 if not before.

8 12:22:52 Q You mean before November 2000 --

9 12:22:56 A Yeah.

10 12:22:56 Q -- October 2006?

11 12:22:58 A Yeah, in that time period.

12 12:22:59 Q And did you communicate that to people at

13 12:23:01 YouTube?

14 12:23:01 A I did.

15 12:23:01 Q With whom did you communicate with?

16 12:23:06 A It would -- this would almost certainly

17 12:23:07 require a legal --

18 12:23:10 MR. MANCINI: Yes. To the extent it seeks

19 12:23:12 communications with counsel, I instruct the witness

20 12:23:14 not to answer.

21 12:23:14 THE WITNESS: Right.

22 12:23:15 MR. BASKIN: Q. And it was your

23 12:23:18 understanding that people were following your

24 12:23:20 policies, Mr. Schmidt?

25 12:23:23 A Yes.
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2 12:23:23 Q Now, to whom did you communicate this policy,

3 12:23:41 Mr. Schmidt?

4 12:23:43 A Within Google or outside of Google?

5 12:23:46 Q Well, let's start within Google.

6 12:23:49 A The executives of the company.

7 12:23:51 Q The executives of Google and YouTube?

8 12:23:56 A Again, without -- without talking about the

9 12:23:58 lawyers, the non-lawyers would certainly have heard it

10 12:24:02 from me directly.

11 12:24:03 Q They would have heard directly from you in

12 12:24:06 meetings with you that they should make --

13 12:24:08 A Yeah.

14 12:24:08 Q -- these tools available --

15 12:24:10 A Uh-huh.

16 12:24:10 Q -- to media companies even in the absence of

17 12:24:13 a revenue-sharing agreement?

18 12:24:16 A And my, again, vague recollection is that it

19 12:24:20 was, in fact, the proposal that I was approving that

20 12:24:22 they were -- they wanted to do. So there was

21 12:24:24 agreement that we should do this.

22 12:24:26 Q And this was a proposal they -- who

23 12:24:28 communicated this proposal to you?

24 12:24:31 A I don't recall. But I remember distinctly

25 12:24:33 that this did occur, so --
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2 12:31:28 paragraph I just read?

3 12:31:29 A I --

4 12:31:30 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

5 12:31:30 THE WITNESS: -- I can speculate. But it's

6 12:31:32 an e-mail to himself, so I don't know what -- is this

7 12:31:34 some -- is this what he wishes? Is this what he

8 12:31:38 thought? Is this what used to be true?

9 12:31:39 MR. MANCINI: You shouldn't speculate.

10 12:31:41 THE WITNESS: Right. I don't know.

11 12:31:42 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, then he says, "Our CYC

12 12:31:46 tools are now live as well and are only offered to

13 12:31:49 partners who enter into a revenue deal with us."

14 12:31:53 Do you see that, sir?

15 12:31:54 MR. MANCINI: Same objection; document speaks

16 12:31:55 for itself.

17 12:31:56 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you see that sentence,

18 12:31:57 Mr. Schmidt?

19 12:31:57 A I see that sentence.

20 12:32:00 Q And do you recall discussing with Mr. Eun

21 12:32:03 what Google's policies were in connection with using

22 12:32:11 CYC tools with media companies that refuse to enter

23 12:32:16 into revenue-sharing agreements?

24 12:32:17 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

25 12:32:19 THE WITNESS: No recollection of this
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2 12:32:22 specific conversation with David on this topic.

3 12:32:24 MR. BASKIN: Q. Do you recall, during this

4 12:32:28 time frame, this is March of '07, discussing this

5 12:32:33 topic with anyone at the EMG whether the CYC tools are

6 12:32:43 only offered to partners who enter into a revenue deal

7 12:32:46 with us?

8 12:32:46 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

9 12:32:48 By the way, the document is dated February of

10 12:32:51 '07, and objection to the extent it seeks

11 12:32:53 communications with legal counsel.

12 12:32:55 THE WITNESS: Again, as I previously stated,

13 12:32:57 our policy, as I recall it and as it was discussed

14 12:33:00 during this period, was the CYC tools, which

15 12:33:03 encompassed audio and video identification, would be

16 12:33:06 available to all.

17 12:33:07 MR. BASKIN: And over what time -- strike

18 12:33:11 that.

19 12:33:12 Q Let me ask you this: In the period of 2006

20 12:33:19 or January/February/March of 2007, do you recall any

21 12:33:31 Google executive discussing with you the cost of

22 12:33:36 providing Audible Magic fingerprint technologies to

23 12:33:42 content companies who would -- who did not enter into

24 12:33:48 a revenue-sharing agreement with Google?

25 12:33:51 MR. MANCINI: Objection to form; and lacks
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2 12:33:53 foundation.

3 12:33:53 THE WITNESS: Again, no recollection.

4 12:33:56 MR. BASKIN: Q. As you sit here today,

5 12:33:59 Mr. Schmidt, do you have any idea what it would have

6 12:34:03 cost in 2006 and 2007 to have made available Audible

7 12:34:16 Magic fingerprint technologies to media companies even

8 12:34:22 if they decline to enter into a revenue-sharing

9 12:34:26 agreement with YouTube?

10 12:34:27 MR. MANCINI: Objection, lacks foundation;

11 12:34:28 and objection to form.

12 12:34:29 THE WITNESS: I do not know.

13 12:34:30 MR. BASKIN: Q. And am I right you don't

14 12:34:32 recall any conversation whatsoever where anyone told

15 12:34:36 you what it would cost; correct?

16 12:34:37 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

17 12:34:39 and objection to form.

18 12:34:40 THE WITNESS: That is correct.

19 12:34:41 MR. BASKIN: Q. And you never asked anyone

20 12:34:42 what it would cost, did you, sir?

21 12:34:45 MR. MANCINI: Same objections.

22 12:34:46 THE WITNESS: Correct.

23 12:34:46 MR. BASKIN: Q. Now, do you recall in 2006

24 12:34:56 and again January/February/March 2007, that any

25 12:35:04 executive from Google or YouTube ever request that
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2 15:08:30 MS. FORSHEIT: Okay. This will be 36.

3 15:08:33 (Document marked Exhibit 36

4 15:08:57 for identification.)

5 15:08:57 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

6 15:08:59 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. And when you've had a

7 15:09:00 chance to look at the document, let me know if you

8 15:09:03 recognize it.

9 15:09:21 A I do not.

10 15:09:25 Q This appears to be an e-mail from you to a

11 15:09:27 number of people, including the EMG, an e-mail that

12 15:09:33 includes the text of a Wall Street Journal article.

13 15:09:38 Do you recall sending this e-mail?

14 15:09:40 A I do not.

15 15:09:41 Q And did you write the subject line? Did you

16 15:09:45 compose the subject line of the e-mail?

17 15:09:46 A Most likely.

18 15:09:48 Q It says, "It may be happening faster than we

19 15:09:52 think. See Saturday WSJ."

20 15:09:57 Do you know what the "it" refers to in the

21 15:09:59 subject line?

22 15:10:01 A I do not.

23 15:10:02 Q The article -- the title of the Wall Street

24 15:10:08 Journal article here, which is dated October 14th,

25 15:10:11 2006, is "Media Tightens Pressure YouTube Over
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2 15:10:14 Copyrights."

3 15:10:15 Does that refresh your recollection as to

4 15:10:16 what the "it" meant in your subject line?

5 15:10:20 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

6 15:10:21 THE WITNESS: As I said, I don't -- I don't

7 15:10:23 recall what the "it" means. It's probable that it's

8 15:10:26 related to the title of the article.

9 15:10:28 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. Did you come up with the

10 15:10:43 idea to pursue YouTube in the first instance?

11 15:10:49 A I did not.

12 15:10:50 Q Do you recall who did?

13 15:10:53 A I believe it was David Drummond.

14 15:10:55 Q I'm actually going to ask you to briefly look

15 15:11:05 back at a document that was marked earlier today.

16 15:11:07 A Sure.

17 15:11:08 Q If you still have Exhibit 7, which was also

18 15:11:13 Drummond Exhibit 17.

19 15:11:22 A Okay. I've got it.

20 15:11:24 Q Okay. This -- you'll recall this is an

21 15:11:32 e-mail from David Eun to you that had forwarded

22 15:11:38 another e-mail on -- and this was in advance of the

23 15:11:44 Video GPS in May of 2006.

24 15:11:50 Under the heading "Balancing short-term

25 15:11:53 versus long-term goals" in the underlying e-mail, in
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2 15:12:00 the second paragraph, the second sentence, Mr. Eun

3 15:12:03 states to you, "For example, there was a heated debate

4 15:12:07 about whether we should relax enforcement of our

5 15:12:09 copyright policies in an effort to stimulate traffic

6 15:12:13 growth despite the inevitable damage it would cause to

7 15:12:16 relationships with content owners."

8 15:12:18 The debate that Mr. Eun is referring to, do

9 15:12:26 you know what debate he's referencing there?

10 15:12:29 MR. MANCINI: Objection; asked and answered

11 15:12:30 previously today.

12 15:12:30 THE WITNESS: Well, as I indicated in my

13 15:12:33 private -- previous testimony, I don't recall this

14 15:12:37 e-mail. In reading the paragraph before, I would

15 15:12:41 interpret that paragraph as referring to the video

16 15:12:43 team debate.

17 15:12:45 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. A debate between the

18 15:12:47 members of the video team?

19 15:12:49 A Yes. To be precise, the Google Video team

20 15:12:52 who are the competitor of YouTube at this point in

21 15:12:55 time.

22 15:12:55 Q Right.

23 15:12:56 And you believe the reference to the debate

24 15:12:58 to be a debate among the members of the Google Video

25 15:13:02 team; is that right?
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2 15:13:03 A That would be my under -- again, in context,

3 15:13:06 reading the e-mail, that's how I would interpret the

4 15:13:08 paragraph.

5 15:13:09 Q Were you ever a part of that debate in any

6 15:13:12 way?

7 15:13:12 A No.

8 15:13:13 Q Did you ever take a position with respect to

9 15:13:16 that debate?

10 15:13:18 MR. MANCINI: Objection.

11 15:13:19 THE WITNESS: No recollection of it.

12 15:13:22 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. Did you disagree with

13 15:13:24 Mr. Eun with respect to the statements he was making

14 15:13:30 in this e-mail?

15 15:13:32 MR. MANCINI: Objection; asked and answered

16 15:13:33 earlier today.

17 15:13:34 THE WITNESS: Well, it would be, I think,

18 15:13:36 more appropriate to quote from my response to David,

19 15:13:39 which is, "While I understand your points and

20 15:13:42 generally agree, I yet -- I don't yet see a winning

21 15:13:45 strategy from any of the video camps."

22 15:13:49 So I was not referring to any specific point

23 15:13:52 by saying that, and to interpret -- my explanation of

24 15:13:58 my paragraph to him, which I can speak authoritatively

25 15:14:02 on, is "get your act together because your strategy
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2 15:14:05 doesn't make any sense." That's what I'm -- that's

3 15:14:09 what I'm communicating to him.

4 15:14:11 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. The Google Video strategy?

5 15:14:13 A Yeah. They're losing.

6 15:14:17 Q Okay.

7 15:14:22 A So I don't take a position on the details

8 15:14:24 there, so --

9 15:14:24 Q And do you recall ever telling Mr. Eun, on

10 15:14:27 any occasion, that Google Video was being

11 15:14:30 outmaneuvered by YouTube?

12 15:14:35 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation.

13 15:14:36 THE WITNESS: Well, you can see that I say

14 15:14:40 that in this e-mail. "My issue is that the team is

15 15:14:42 reacting to others rather than driving a new strategy,

16 15:14:47 and I want to see a compelling differentiated

17 15:14:50 strategy."

18 15:14:50 That's synonymous with a "yes" to your

19 15:14:52 question.

20 15:14:54 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. Did that cause you to

21 15:15:02 re-evaluate the copyright strategy that Google Video

22 15:15:05 had adopted?

23 15:15:06 MR. MANCINI: Objection; lacks foundation;

24 15:15:08 and objection to form.

25 15:15:09 THE WITNESS: No recollection of that.
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2 15:15:12 MS. FORSHEIT: Q. And as head of the

3 15:15:20 company, is it your testimony today that you don't

4 15:15:22 recall any concerns at the time of the acquisition of

5 15:15:26 YouTube about the extent of copyright infringement

6 15:15:29 occurring on YouTube?

7 15:15:31 MR. MANCINI: Objection to the

8 15:15:31 characterization of the testimony and to the extent it

9 15:15:33 seeks communications with counsel. Therefore,

10 15:15:37 instruct not to answer.

11 15:15:38 THE WITNESS: I believe that's not what I

12 15:15:39 said earlier. I believe what I said was I was aware

13 15:15:43 from public reports of the general question prior to

14 15:15:48 the acquisition. And anything else would be a legally

15 15:15:53 privileged answer.

16 15:15:57 MS. FORSHEIT: I assume that since you don't

17 15:16:14 recall -- strike that.

18 15:16:17 Q I assume that since you don't know, as you

19 15:16:19 sit here today, what Premier League is, that you don't

20 15:16:22 recall ever having discussions about possibly entering

21 15:16:25 into any kind of content deal with Premier League?

22 15:16:28 MR. MANCINI: Objection; calls for

23 15:16:30 speculation.

24 15:16:30 THE WITNESS: That is correct. I don't

25 15:16:32 recall any -- I don't recall anything about such a


